## RETURN BIDS TO: RETOURNER LES SOUMISSIONS À:

Health Canada / Santé Canada

Attn: Wesley Phillips

Email: wesley.phillips@hc-sc.gc.ca

# REQUEST FOR STANDING OFFER DEMANDE DE OFFRE À COMMANDES

## **Proposal To: Health Canada**

We hereby offer to sell to Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada, in accordance with the terms and conditions set out herein, referred to herein or attached hereto, the goods, services, and construction listed herein and on any attached sheets at the price(s) set out thereof.

#### Proposition à: Santé Canada

Nous offrons par la présente de vendre à Sa Majesté la Reine du chef du Canada, aux conditions énoncées ou incluses par référence dans la présente et aux annexes ci-jointes, les biens, services et construction énumérés ici sur toute feuille ci-annexées, au(x) prix indiqué(s).

Instructions : See Herein Instructions: Voir aux présentes

Issuing Office – Bureau de distribution Health Canada / Santé Canada 200, Eglantine Driveway Tunney's Pasture Ottawa Ontario K1A 0K9

<b>Title – Sujet</b> Provision of Scientific Expertise to S Risk Assessment	Support Human Health
Solicitation No. – N° de l'invitation	Date
1000251894	December 5, 2023
Solicitation Closes at – L'invitation prend fin à : 2:00pm on / le – January 15, 2024	Time Zone Fuseau horaire EST
F.O.B F.A.B.	_
Plant-Usine: Destination:	Other-Autre:
Address Enquiries to: - Adresser tou Name: Wesley Phillips Email: wesley.phillips@hc-sc.gc.ca Telephone - téléphone: 613-941-2067	tes questions à :
Destination – of Goods, Services, an Destination – des biens, services et d See Herein – Voir ici	
Delivery required - Livraison exigée	
See Herein – Voir ici  Vendor/firm Name and address	
Raison sociale et adresse du fournis  Facsimile No. – N° de télécopieur :  Telephone No. – N° de téléphone :	
Name and title of person authorized Vendor/firm	to sign on behalf of
Nom et titre de la personne autorisée fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur	à signer au nom du
(type or print)/ (taper ou écrire en car	ractères d'imprimerie)
Signature	Date

## June 2023 Request for Standing Offers Template (RFSO)

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

PART 1	- GENERAL INFORMATION	3
1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5	INTRODUCTION	3 4 4
PART 2	2 - OFFEROR INSTRUCTIONS	5
2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6	STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS, CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS  SUBMISSION OF OFFERS  FORMER PUBLIC SERVANT  ENQUIRIES - REQUEST FOR STANDING OFFERS  APPLICABLE LAWS.  BID CHALLENGE AND RECOURSE MECHANISMS.	5 
PART 3	- OFFER PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS	9
3.1	Offer Preparation Instructions	9
PART 4	- EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION	11
4.1 4.2	EVALUATION PROCEDURES	
PART 5	5 – CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	35
5.1 5.2	CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED WITH THE OFFERCERTIFICATIONS PRECEDENT TO THE ISSUANCE OF A STANDING OFFER AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
PART 6	S - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	37
6.1 6.2	SECURITY REQUIREMENTS	
PART 7	- STANDING OFFER AND RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES	38
A. ST.	ANDING OFFER	38
7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7	OFFER	38 39 39 40
7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13 7.14	CALL-UP PROCEDURES  CALL-UP INSTRUMENT  LIMITATION OF CALL-UPS  FINANCIAL LIMITATION  PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS  CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  APPLICABLE LAWS	41414142
7.15 7.16	TRANSITION TO AN E-PROCUREMENT SOLUTION (EPS)	42

B. R	ESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES	43
7.1	STATEMENT OF WORK	43
7.2	STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS	43
7.3	TERM OF CONTRACT	
7.4	PROACTIVE DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTS WITH FORMER PUBLIC SERVANTS	43
7.5	Payment	43
7.6	PAYMENTInvoicing Instructions	44
7.7	Insurance	44
7.8		
ANNE	X "A"	46
STAT	TEMENT OF WORK	46
ANNE	X "B"	57
BASI	IS OF PAYMENT – FINANCIAL OFFER	57
ANNE	X "C"	58
SEC	URITY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST	58

#### **PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### 1.1 Introduction

The Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) is divided into seven parts plus attachments and annexes, as follows:

Part 1 General Information: provides a general description of the requirement; Part 2 Offeror Instructions: provides the instructions applicable to the clauses and conditions of the RFSO: Offer Preparation Instructions: provides offerors with instructions on how to prepare their Part 3 offer to address the evaluation criteria specified; Part 4 Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection: indicates how the evaluation will be conducted, the evaluation criteria which must be addressed in the offer, and the basis of selection; Part 5 Certifications and Additional Information: includes the certifications and additional information to be provided; Part 6 Security, Financial and Insurance Requirements: includes specific requirements that must be addressed by offerors; and Part 7 7A, Standing Offer, and 7B, Resulting Contract Clauses: 7A, includes the Standing Offer containing the offer from the Offeror and the applicable clauses and conditions;

7B, includes the clauses and conditions which will apply to any contract resulting from a call-up made pursuant to the Standing Offer.

The Annexes include the Statement of Work, the Basis of Payment and the Security Requirement Checklists.

## 1.2 Summary

In order to facilitate Safe Environments Directorate's (SED) fulfillment of its obligations in relation to the assessment of the health risks posed by chemical substances, SED requires professional services for various activities in support of human health risk assessment and are seeking to establish up to twenty (20) Standing Offers (SO's) covering these professional services amongst four (4) streams. The total estimated cumulative value of all Standing Offer Agreements resulting from this Request for Standing Offer shall not exceed \$20 million excluding all applicable taxes over a period of five (5) years. The four (4) streams and maximum estimated values per stream over the five (5) year period during which the Standing Offers are in effect are as follows:

**STREAM 1** – PROVISION OF SCIENTIFIC EXPERTISE TO CONDUCT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT OR SCIENTIFIC PEER REVIEW OR CONSULTATION IN SUPPORT OF HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT (\$6 million excluding applicable taxes)

**STREAM 2** – PROVISION OF INFORMATION GATHERING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT (\$5 million excluding applicable taxes)

**STREAM 3** – NEW APPROACH METHOD (NAM) DATA GENERATION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OR APPLICATION OF NAM IN SUPPORT OF HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT (\$4 million excluding applicable taxes)

**STREAM 4** – PROVISION OF EXPERTISE, INFORMATION GATHERING AND/OR TRAINING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT (\$5 million excluding applicable taxes)

Up to five (5) Standing Offers will be issued per Stream. Offerors can submit an offer for as many streams as they wish, but will have to submit their offer per stream <u>separately</u>.

## 1.3 Security Requirements

There are security requirements associated with the requirement of the Standing Offer. For additional information, see Part 6 - Security, Financial and Insurance Requirements, and Part 7 - Standing Offer and Resulting Contract Clauses. For more information on personnel and organization security screening or security clauses, offerors should refer to the <a href="Contract Security Program">Contract Security Program</a> of Public Works and Government Services Canada (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/esc-src/introduction-eng.html) website.

## 1.4 Debriefings

Offerors may request a debriefing on the results of the request for standing offers process. Offerors should make the request to the Standing Offer Authority within **15 working days** of receipt of the results of the request for standing offers process. The debriefing may be in writing, by telephone or in person.

#### 1.5 Anticipated migration to an e-Procurement Solution (EPS)

Canada is currently developing an online EPS for faster and more convenient ordering of goods and services. In support of the anticipated transition to this system and how it may impact any resulting Standing Offer that is issued under this solicitation, refer to 7.15 Transition to an e-Procurement Solution (EPS).

The Government of Canada's press release provides additional information.

#### 1.6 Comprehensive Land Claim Agreements

The Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) is to establish Regional Individual Standing Offers for the requirement detailed in the RFSO, to the Identified Users in the National Capital Region (NCR), which are not subject to Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements (CLCAs). Any requirement for deliveries to locations within CLCAs areas within Yukon, Northwest Territories, Nunavut, Quebec, or Labrador will have to be treated as a separate procurement, outside of the resulting standing offers.

#### **PART 2 - OFFEROR INSTRUCTIONS**

#### 2.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

Offerors who submit an offer agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the RFSO and accept the clauses and conditions of the Standing Offer and resulting contract(s).

The <u>2006</u> (2023-06-08) Standard Instructions - Request for Standing Offers - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, are incorporated by reference into and form part of the RFSO.

Subsection 5.4 of <u>2006</u>, Standard Instructions - Request for Standing Offers - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, is amended as follows:

Delete: 60 days Insert: 90 days

#### 2.2 Submission of Offers

Offers must be submitted to Wesley Phillips by the date and time indicated on page 1 of the Request for Standing Offers, through one of the methods below:

## A: Via Email (preferred)

Emailed offers must be submitted only to <a href="west-epi-phillips@hc-sc.gc.ca">west-epi-phillips@hc-sc.gc.ca</a> by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of the Request for Standing Offers.

The RFSO Reference Number and the title of the Requirement must be in the subject line of your email.

#### B: Via Bid Receiving Unit

Any offer not submitted via e-mail as above must be delivered to the following address:

Health Canada Bid Receiving Unit Federal Records Centre Building,

161 Goldenrod Driveway (Loading Dock), Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0K9

**Attention: Wesley Phillips** 

RFP Reference Number: 1000251894

Hours of Operation: 07h30 to 16h30 Monday to Friday

The RFSO Reference Number, Stream Number, and the name of the RFSO Authority must be marked on all documents, binders and respective envelopes.

Due to the nature of the Request for Standing Offers, transmission of offers by facsimile will not be accepted.

#### 2.3 Former Public Servant

Contracts awarded to former public servants (FPS) in receipt of a pension or of a lump sum payment must bear the closest public scrutiny, and reflect fairness in the spending of public funds. In order to comply with Treasury Board policies and directives on contracts awarded to FPS, offerors must provide the information required below before the issuance of a standing offer. If the answer to the questions and, as applicable the information required have not been received by the time the evaluation of offers is completed, Canada will inform the Offeror of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to comply with Canada's request and meet the requirement within the prescribed time frame will render the offer non-responsive.

#### **Definitions**

For the purposes of this clause,

"former public servant" is any former member of a department as defined in the <u>Financial Administration</u> <u>Act</u> R.S., 1985, c. F-11, a former member of the Canadian Armed Forces or a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police. A former public servant may be:

- a. an individual;
- b. an individual who has incorporated;
- c. a partnership made of former public servants; or
- d. a sole proprietorship or entity where the affected individual has a controlling or major interest in the entity.

"lump sum payment period" means the period measured in weeks of salary, for which payment has been made to facilitate the transition to retirement or to other employment as a result of the implementation of various programs to reduce the size of the Public Service. The lump sum payment period does not include the period of severance pay, which is measured in a like manner.

"pension" means a pension or annual allowance paid under the <u>Public Service Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA), R.S., 1985, c. P-36, and any increases paid pursuant to the <u>Supplementary Retirement Benefits Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. S-24 as it affects the PSSA. It does not include pensions payable pursuant to the <u>Canadian Forces Superannuation Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. C-17, the <u>Defence Services Pension Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c. D-3, the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Pension Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c. R-10, and the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. R-11, the <u>Members of Parliament Retiring Allowances Act</u>, R.S. 1985, c. M-5, and that portion of pension payable to the <u>Canada Pension Plan Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c. C-8.

### Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension

As per the above definitions, is the Offeror a FPS in receipt of a pension? YES () NO ()

If so, the Offeror must provide the following information, for all FPS in receipt of a pension, as applicable:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. date of termination of employment or retirement from the Public Service.

By providing this information, Offerors agree that the successful Offeror's status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a pension, will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports in accordance with <a href="Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01">Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01</a> and the <a href="Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts">Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts</a>.

#### **Work Force Adjustment Directive**

Is the Offeror a FPS who received a lump sum payment pursuant to the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive? **YES**() **NO**()

If so, the Offeror must provide the following information:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. conditions of the lump sum payment incentive;
- c. date of termination of employment;
- d. amount of lump sum payment;
- e. rate of pay on which lump sum payment is based;
- f. period of lump sum payment including start date, end date and number of weeks;
- g. number and amount (professional fees) of other contracts subject to the restrictions of a work force adjustment program.

## 2.4 Enquiries - Request for Standing Offers

All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Standing Offer Authority no later than **fifteen (15)** calendar days before the Request for Standing Offers (RFSO) closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.

Offerors should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the RFSO to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by offerors to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. Canada may edit the question(s) or may request that offerors do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question(s) is eliminated, and the enquiry can be answered to all offerors. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all offerors may not be answered by Canada.

#### 2.5 Applicable Laws

The Standing Offer and any contract resulting from the Standing Offer must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Ontario.

Offerors may, at their discretion, substitute the applicable laws of a Canadian province or territory of their choice without affecting the validity of their offer, by deleting the name of the Canadian province or territory specified and inserting the name of the Canadian province or territory of their choice. If no change is made, it acknowledges that the applicable laws specified are acceptable to the offerors.

#### 2.6 Bid Challenge and Recourse Mechanisms

- (a) Several mechanisms are available to potential offerors to challenge aspects of the procurement process up to and including contract award.
- (b) Canada encourages offerors to first bring their concerns to the attention of the Contracting Authority. Canada's <u>Buy and Sell</u> website, under the heading "<u>Bid Challenge and Recourse Mechanisms</u>" contains information on potential complaint bodies such as:
  - Office of the Procurement Ombudsman (OPO)
  - Canadian International Trade Tribunal (CITT)

(c) Offerors should note that there are **strict deadlines** for filing complaints, and the time periods vary depending on the complaint body in question. Offerors should therefore act quickly when they want to challenge any aspect of the procurement process.

#### PART 3 - OFFER PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

## 3.1 Offer Preparation Instructions

Canada requests that the offer be gathered per section and separated as follows:

#### A. For electronic bid submissions via e-mail:

Section I: Technical Offer (one (1) electronic copy submitted via email) Section II: Financial Offer (one (1) electronic copy submitted via email) Section III: Certifications (one (1) electronic copy submitted via email)

#### B. For hard-copy submissions to Bid Receiving Unit:

Section I: Technical Offer (four (4) hard-copies and one (1) soft-copy via CD) Section II: Financial Offer (one (1) hard-copy and one soft-copy via CD) Section III: Certifications (one (1) hard-copy and one soft-copy via CD)

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of the soft copy on electronic media and the hard copy, the wording of the hard copy will have priority over the wording of the soft copy.

Prices must appear in the financial offer only. No prices must be indicated in any other section of the offer.

#### A SEPARATE BID PACKAGE MUST BE PREPARED FOR EACH STREAM

Canada requests that offerors follow the format instructions described below in the preparation of hard copy of their offer:

- (a) use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper;
- (b) use a numbering system that corresponds to the RFSO.

In order to assist Canada in meeting the objectives of the <u>Policy on Green Procurement</u>, when feasible Offerors should prepare and submit their offer as follows:

- 1) Include all environmental certification(s) relevant to your organization (such as ISO 14001, Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED), Carbon Disclosure Project, etc.).
- Include all third party environmental certification(s) or Environmental Product Declaration(s) (EPD) specific to your product/service (such as Canadian Standards Association (CSA Group), Underwriters Laboratories (ULSolutions); Forest Stewardship Council (FSC), ENERGYSTAR, etc.).
- 3) Unless otherwise noted, offerors are encouraged to submit offers electronically. If hard copies are required, offerors should:
  - a. use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper containing fibre certified as originating from a sustainably managed forest and containing minimum 30% recycled content; and
  - b. use an environmentally preferable format including black and white printing instead of colour printing, printing double sided/duplex, using staples or clips instead of Cerlox, duo tangs, spiral binding or binders, and must not contain any single-use plastics.

Canada is committed to achieving <u>net zero greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by 2050</u> in an effort to position Canada for success in a green economy and to mitigate climate change impacts. As a result, future solicitations may include the following:

- there may be evaluation criteria or other instructions in the solicitation or contract documents related to measuring and disclosing your company's GHG emissions;
- you may be requested or required to join one of the following initiatives to submit a bid, offer or arrangement or if you are awarded the contract:
  - o Canada's Net-Zero Challenge;
  - o the United Nations Race to Zero;
  - o the Science-based Targets Initiative;
  - the Carbon Disclosure Project;
  - o the International Organization for Standardization;
- you may be required to provide other evidence of your company's commitment and actions toward meeting net zero targets by 2050.

#### Section I: Technical Offer

In their technical offer, offerors should explain and demonstrate how they propose to meet the requirements and how they will carry out the Work.

#### Section II: Financial Offer

Offerors must submit their financial offer in accordance with Annex B, Basis of Payment.

#### Section III: Certifications

Offerors must submit the certifications and additional information required under Part 5.

#### PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

#### 4.1 Evaluation Procedures

- (a) Offers will be assessed in accordance with the entire requirement of the Request for Standing Offers including the technical and financial evaluation criteria.
- (b) An evaluation team composed of representatives of Canada will evaluate the offers.

#### 4.1.1 Technical Evaluation

Mandatory Requirements are evaluated on a pass or fail basis. Failure on the part of the Offeror to meet any one (1) of the Mandatory Requirements shall result in the offer being deemed non-responsive and ineligible for any further consideration or evaluation. **The Mandatory Technical Criteria are common to all streams**, as described in section 4.1.1, but must be provided in separate submissions for each stream.

It is the responsibility of the Offeror to ensure that their Technical Offer meets ALL of the Mandatory Requirements as outlined below.

The Point Rated Technical Criteria are scored on a quantitative scale up to a <u>maximum of 75 points</u>, with the <u>minimum score</u> required to be eligible for further consideration being <u>45 points</u>. **The Point Rated Technical Criteria are stream specific**, as described in section 4.1.1.2.

The Offeror must provide sufficiently detailed information for evaluation as to whether or not they meet each requirement in their offer. Health Canada will not request additional information from Offerors to substantiate meeting any criteria, unless otherwise stated.

Where examples are requested to demonstrate meeting a criterion, the Offeror should provide only the specific number of examples requested, or at a minimum, indicate in its offer which examples apply to the specific criterion.

HEALTH CANADA RESERVES THE RIGHT TO VERIFY ALL INFORMATION SUBMITTED IN THE OFFEROR'S PROPOSAL.

NOTE: Offeror must submit independent Offers for each stream.

#### 4.1.1.1 Mandatory Technical Criteria

The following mandatory technical criteria apply to each of the following streams. Offerors must indicate which stream they are submitting their offer for. Offerors must submit a separate offer for each stream.

STREAM 1 – PROVISION OF SCIENTIFIC EXPERTISE TO CONDUCT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT OR SCIENTIFIC PEER REVIEW OR CONSULTATION IN SUPPORT OF HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT

**STREAM 2** – PROVISION OF INFORMATION GATHERING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT

STREAM 3 – NEW APPROACH METHOD (NAM) DATA GENERATION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OR APPLICATION OF NAM IN SUPPORT OF HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT

# **STREAM 4** – PROVISION OF EXPERTISE, INFORMATION GATHERING AND/OR TRAINING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT

## **ATTENTION OFFERORS:**

Indicate beside each criterion the relevant page number(s) from your bid which addresses the requirement identified in the criterion.

#	Ма	Mandatory Technical Criteria		Cross-Reference to bid (indicate page #)
MT1	Firm:			
		<b>JST</b> clearly indicate to which stream it is applying ly one stream can be selected per offer).		
	Stream	ns: STREAM 1 – PROVISION OF SCIENTIFIC		
		EXPERTISE TO CONDUCT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT OR SCIENTIFIC PEER REVIEW OR CONSULTATION		
	STREAM 2 – PROVISION OF INFORMATION GATHERING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT			
		STREAM 3 – NEW APPROACH METHOD (NAM) DATA GENERATION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OR APPLICATION OF NAM IN SUPPORT OF HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT		
		STREAM 4 – PROVISION OF EXPERTISE, INFORMATION GATHERING AND/OR TRAINING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT		

MT2	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> submit resources under the following resource categories:		
	a. One (1) Project Manager,		
	And,		
	b. A minimum of one (1) and up to ten (10) Technical Experts.		
	Offerors must include within their Technical Offer a detailed résumé for EACH proposed resource which must include a detailed, chronological listing of:		
	Their technical experience and capability as a Project Manager, Human Health Risk Assessor, Scientific Researcher or Health Impact Assessment Expert in the stream for which they have been proposed.		
	And,		
	Their education and professional attainments and academic credentials.		
	In addition, for every resource proposed by the Offeror who is not an employee of the firm, the actual resource must certify that they are aware that they are being proposed as part of the Offer and state their relationship with the firm.		
МТ3	The Offeror <b>MUST</b> provide two (2) client references for projects they completed relevant to the Stream for which they are submitting an offer, as per the Statement of Work.		
	The references <b>MUST</b> be for separate projects completed within the last seven (7) years from the date of RFSO issue.		
	The Offeror MUST provide and ensure contact information is up-to-date and include the Company Name, Name of a Contact Person, mailing and email address and Phone Number. The references MUST also include a description of the work that was completed (for example, submit a project description and attach a client reference).		
	One (1) of the references must be a Federal, Provincial or Territorial Canadian Government client, or equivalent level officer of a foreign government.		
	Both references provided must be able to attest to the quality and timeliness of the work undertaken by the Offeror by confirming the Offeror is capable of meeting timelines and		

	delivering services that met or exceeded the expected quality.			
	Reference verification questions to be asked: In regards to the Offeror's experience in providing services to support human health risk assessment, NAM Data Generation, or health impact assessment in the stream for which they are submitting an offer,			
	Please confirm that the Offeror is capable of meeting timelines; and,			
	Please confirm that the Offeror is capable of delivering services that met or exceeded expected quality.			
	Health Canada will contact the references during the evaluation and ask the above questions. Health Canada will give the reference seven (7) calendar days to respond. Should any of the references not be available or do not confirm the requested information within the timeframe given, the offer will be deemed non-responsive.			
	In lieu of Health Canada conducting the verification, the Offeror may provide client reference letters within their offer that include all the requested information and confirm the dates when the letters were written. Health Canada may choose to contact the references to confirm the validity of the reference letters.			
MT4	Project Manager			
	The Offeror's proposed Project Manager from MT2 <b>MUST</b> demonstrate:			
	a. a minimum of five (5) years of experience conducting activities directly related to human health risk assessment or health impact assessment. These activities may include data generation in support of human health risk assessment (stream 3).			
	And,			
	b. a minimum of two (2) years of professional experience providing scientific/technical or regulatory advice or NAM development/data generation relevant to human health risk assessment or health impact assessment.			
	And,			
	c. hold a MSc or PhD in biology, toxicology, chemistry, epidemiology, statistics, engineering, or environmental, social or health sciences (or scientific field relevant to human health risk assessment); Or proof of certification as a Diplomate of the American Board of Toxicology (DABT).			
	Years of experience must be in months and years (cumulative)			

	and cannot overlap for the proposed resource.	
	The Offeror must provide documentation (proof) of academic accreditations or its equivalent (if it was conferred by a foreign institution) within their offer.	
МТ5	Technical Experts	
	The Offeror's proposed Technical Experts from MT2 <b>MUST</b> each demonstrate:	
	minimum of two (2) years of experience conducting activities directly related to human health risk assessment or health impact assessment	
	And,	
	<ul> <li>b. hold a BSc or higher in biology, toxicology, chemistry, epidemiology, statistics, engineering, or environmental, social or health sciences (or scientific field relevant to human health risk assessment); Or proof of certification as a Diplomate of the American Board of Toxicology (DABT); Or hold a laboratory technician certificate/diploma (Stream 3 only)</li> </ul>	
	Years of experience must be in months and years (cumulative) and cannot overlap for each proposed resource.	
	The Offeror must provide documentation (proof) of academic accreditations or its equivalent (if it was conferred by a foreign institution) within their offer.	

## 4.1.1.2 Point Rated Technical Criteria

An overall pass mark of 45 points is required on the point-rated criteria to be responsive.

The following point-rated criteria apply to the following stream only. If submitting an offer for another stream, please see below for its associated point-rated criteria.

	STREAM 1 – PROVISION OF SCIENTIFIC EXPERTISE TO CONDUCT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT OR SCIENTIFIC PEER REVIEW OR CONSULTATION IN SUPPORT OF HUMAN			
		RISK ASSESSMENT		
Item	Description	Rating Scale	Offeror's Score (to be completed by evaluators)	Cross-Reference to bid (indicate page #)
RT1	Project Manager The Offeror SHOULD demonstrate that the proposed Project Manager from MT2 has project management experience by providing relevant documentation for up to three (3) previously managed projects for services similar to or relevant to Stream 1 in Annex "A" – Statement of Requirements. Information provided should include:  1) name of project 2) name of project client and contact name and contact information (phone number or email address, as available); 3) duration of project (in format mm-yyyy	Up to three (3) points per project (up to one (1) point for relevance and up to two (2) points for description) to a maximum total of nine (9) points.		
	to mm- yyyy);  4) description of project manager's responsibilities for management of project, such as development of budget, clear, logical and feasible work plan, approach and methodology, allocation of technical personnel, adherence to project schedule, and timely invoicing.			

## RT2 Project Manager

The Offeror **SHOULD** provide proof of the proposed Project Manager's business interactions with international, national or provincial/state agencies or organizations in relation to human health risk assessment activities relevant to Stream 1. Provide relevant documentation for up to two (2) examples.

The proof must clearly describe the nature of the proposed resource's role and contribution to the submitted documentation.

[Examples of agencies/organizations: Health Canada, US Environmental Protection Agency, California Environmental Protection Agency, World Health Organization, and International Agency for Research on Cancer].

Any valid documentation is acceptable as proof (e.g., reports, articles, references, expert consultation, etc.).

Proof must include the following information:

- The name of the agency or organization;
- The client contact of the agencies or organizations
- Client contact telephone number and e-mail address

Description of particulars surrounding the business interactions.

Up to three (3) points will be allocated for each example (up to two (2) points for relevance and one (1) point for appropriate agency) up to a maximum total of six (6) points.

RT3	The Offeror (i.e. the firm or the project	Up to fifteen (15)	
	manager or technical experts) specified in MT2 (please briefly	points will be allocated for each	
	describe roles and responsibilities)	example as per the	
	SHOULD provide up to two (2)	legend below up to a	
	example documents which demonstrate experience, within the	maximum total of thirty (30) points.	
	last seven (7) years of this RFSO	tility (30) politis.	
	date of issue, as per the Stream 1 of		
	the Statement of Work, in:		
	the preparation of in-depth/de		
	novo health hazard		
	characterization; or		
	the preparation of in-depth/de		
	novo human exposure		
	assessment in support of human health risk assessment;		
	or		
	<ul> <li>in the preparation of complete* in depth/de novo human health</li> </ul>		
	risk assessment (according to		
	or in a manner similar to Health		
	Canada human health risk		
	assessment practice).		
	The examples must clearly outline the		
	Offeror's role or involvement in the preparation of the example		
	document.		
	16.00		
	If the example documents include sections on hazard, exposure and		
	risk, the Offeror must indicate which		
	section(s) are to be evaluated for this		
	RFSO.		
	A minimum of one example must be		
	for a national, international or		
	provincial/state agency.		
	Details must be provided or		
	highlighted demonstrating internal quality assurance procedures.		
	quality assurance procedures.		
	[* N.B.: "complete" in this context		
	refers to inclusion of in-depth/de novo hazard, exposure <b>and</b> risk		
	assessment		

assessment]

RT4	The Offeror (i.e. the firm or the project manager or technical experts) specified in MT2 (please briefly describe roles and responsibilities) must provide up to two (2) examples which demonstrate experience, within the last seven (7) years of this RFSO date of issue, as per Stream 1 of the Statement of Work, in the provision of:  • scientific consultation in support of human health risk assessment, or  • expert peer review of a comprehensive hazard characterization or human exposure assessment in support of human health risk assessment or a complete human health risk assessment.  A minimum of one example must be for a national, international or provincial/state agency.  Details must be provided or highlighted demonstrating internal quality assurance procedures.	Up to fifteen (15) points will be allocated for each example as per the legend below up to a maximum total of thirty (30) points.		
		Offeror's Score:		
		Max Score:	75	
		Min Score:	45	

	STREAM 1 LEGEND FOR SCORING RT3 AND RT4			
Excellent	factors, and exceeding the requirement. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure highly effective performant on this aspect of the work.			
Good	12 – 13 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion addresses the requirement well while missing a few key factors. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure more than adequate performance on this aspect of the work.		
Satisfactory	8 – 11 points	The Offeror's response satisfactorily addresses this criterion while missing many key elements. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must meet the minimum needed for adequate performance on this aspect of the work.		

Minimal	4 – 7 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is inadequate in certain areas
	·	of this factor. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is likely to be insufficient in terms of performance on this aspect of the
		work.

STRE	STREAM 2 – PROVISION OF INFORMATION GATHERING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT						
Item		Description	Rating Scale	Offeror's Score (to be completed by evaluators)	Cross-Reference to bid (indicate page #)		
RT1	The Control of that the from the experience of the court of the experience of the ex	piect Manager  Offeror SHOULD demonstrate the proposed Project Manager MT2 has project management rience, by providing relevant mentation for up to three (3) ously managed projects, for the similar to or relevant to mean 2 in Annex "A" – Statement of irements. Information provided include:  name of project client and contact information (phone number or email address, as available);  duration of project (in format mm-yyyy to mm-yyyy);  description of project manager's responsibilities for management of project, such as development of budget, clear, logical and feasible work plan, approach and methodology, allocation of technical personnel, adherence to project schedule, and timely invoicing.	Up to three (3) points per project (up to one (1) point for relevance and up to two (2) points for description) to a maximum total of nine (9) points.	Overlanding			

## RT2 Project Manager

The Offeror **SHOULD** provide proof of the proposed Project Manager's business interactions with international, national or provincial/state agencies or organizations in relation to human health risk assessment activities relevant to Stream 2. Provide relevant documentation for up to two (2) examples.

The proof must clearly describe the nature of the proposed resource's role and contribution to the submitted documentation.

[Examples of agencies/organizations: Health Canada, US Environmental Protection Agency, California Environmental Protection Agency, World Health Organization, and International Agency for Research on Cancer].

Any valid documentation is acceptable as proof (e.g., reports, articles, references, expert consultation, etc.).

Proof must include the following information:

- The name of the agency or organization;
- The client contact of the agencies or organizations
- Client contact telephone number and e-mail address
- Description of particulars surrounding the business interactions.

Up to three (3) points will be allocated for each example (up to two (2) points for relevance and one (1) point for appropriate agency) up to a maximum total of six (6) points.

RT3	The Offeror <b>SHOULD</b> provide a description of the current process and methodology by which they conduct a literature review to support human health risk assessment (including search strategies and tools, critical appraisal of studies, tabulation, integrated summary, quality control, etc).	Up to fifteen (15) points will be allocated as per the legend below up to a maximum total of fifteen (15) points.		
RT4	The Offeror (i.e. the firm or the project manager or technical experts) specified in MT2 (please briefly describe roles and responsibilities) SHOULD provide up to three (3) recent example documents, within the last seven (7) years of this RFSO date of issue, of a literature review to support human health risk assessment.	Up to fifteen (15) points will be allocated for each example as per the legend below up to a maximum total of forty-five (45) points.		
	A minimum of one example must be for a national, international or provincial/state agency.			
	Details must be provided or highlighted demonstrating internal quality assurance procedures.			
	Offeror's Score			
		75		
		45		

	STREAM 2 LEGEND FOR SCORING RT3 AND RT4				
Excellent	14 - 15 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is in depth, covering all of the factors, and exceeding the requirement. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure highly effective performance on this aspect of the work.			
Good	12 – 13 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion addresses the requirement well while missing a few key factors. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure more than adequate performance on this aspect of the work.			
Satisfactory	8 – 11 points	The Offeror's response satisfactorily addresses this criterion while missing many key elements. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must meet the minimum needed for adequate performance on this aspect of the work.			
Minimal	4 – 7 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is inadequate in certain areas of this factor. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is likely to be insufficient in terms of performance on this aspect of the work.			

STRE	TREAM 3 – NEW APPROACH METHOD (NAM) DATA GENERATION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OR APPLICATION OF NAM IN SUPPORT OF HUMAN HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT				
Item	Description	Rating Scale	Offeror's Score (to be completed by evaluators)	Cross-Reference to bid <i>(indicate page</i> #)	
RT1	Project Manager  The Offeror SHOULD demonstrate that the proposed Project Manager from MT2 has project management experience by providing relevant documentation for up to three (3) previously managed projects for services similar to or relevant to Stream 3 in Annex "A" – Statement of Requirements. Information provided must include:  1) name of project  2) name of project client and contact name and contact information (phone number or email address, as available);  3) duration of project (in format mmyyyy to mm-yyyy);  4) description of project manager's responsibilities for management of project, such as development of budget, clear, logical and feasible work plan, approach and methodology, allocation of technical personnel, adherence to project schedule, and timely invoicing.	Up to three (3) points per project (up to one (1) point for relevance and up to two (2) points for description) to a maximum total of nine (9) points.			
RT2	Project Manager  The Offeror SHOULD provide proof of the proposed Project Manager's business interactions with international, national or provincial/state agencies or organizations or chemical/pharmaceutical companies in relation to NAM data generation for human health risk assessment activities relevant to Stream 3. Provide relevant documentation for up to two (2) examples.  The proof must clearly describe the	Up to three (3) points will be allocated for each example (up to two (2) points for relevance and one (1) point for appropriate agency) up to a maximum total of six (6) points.			

	nature of the proposed resource's role and contribution to the submitted documentation.  Any valid documentation is acceptable as proof (e.g. reports, articles, references, expert consultation, etc.).  Proof must include the following information:  The name of the agency/organization/company;  The client contact of the agency/organization/company  Client contact telephone number and e-mail address  Description of particulars surrounding the business interactions.		
RT3	The Offeror <b>SHOULD</b> provide up to two (2) examples that demonstrate experience, within the last seven years of this RFSO date of issue, in the development and/or conduct of new approach methods (NAMs) to fill data gaps and/or in support of the replacement of animal toxicity testing.  Relevant examples include NAMs or integrated test methods to assess/inform the following endpoints: endocrine disruption, genetic toxicity, transcriptomics, acute toxicity, repeat dose toxicity, reproductive/developmental toxicity, inhalation toxicity, toxicokinetics, toxicokinetic modelling, exposure, exposure modelling.  Offerors must specify the NAM test method(s)/model(s) and endpoint(s) they routinely carry out and for which they can provide data for under this SO.  NAMs and/or integrated testing strategies must be specifically related to the assessment of health hazard(s) or human exposure to support human health risk assessment, and this relationship must be described.  Offerors must confirm access to lab	Up to fifteen (15) points will be allocated as per the legend below up to a maximum total of thirty (30) points.	

	with required material/instrumentation, or for computational approaches, that they have access to required IT infrastructure/programs.			
	Details must be provided or highlighted demonstrating proficiency of the data generation lab (e.g., lab accreditation, studies conducted according to GLP, internal quality assurance/quality control procedures) and throughput capacity for each proposed NAM. Additionally, details must be provided to demonstrate robust, reliable, and standardized performance criteria for the proposed NAM(s).			
RT4	The Offeror <b>SHOULD</b> provide up to two (2) example documents which demonstrate experience, within the last seven (7) years of this RFSO date of issue, in the interpretation of the results of NAMs for characterization of health hazard or human exposure.  A minimum of one example should be in support of a human health risk assessment.	Up to fifteen (15) points will be allocated for each example as per the legend below up to a maximum total of thirty (30) points.		
		Offeror's Score: Max Score:	75	
		Min Score:	45	

	STREAM 3 LEGEND FOR SCORING RT3				
Excellent	13 – 15 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is in depth, covering all of the factors, and exceeding the requirement. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure highly effective performance on this aspect of the work. The Offeror is proposing concentration-response data generation capability for 2 or more different NAM*			
Good	10 – 12 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is in depth, covering all of the factors, and exceeding the requirement. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure highly effective performance on this aspect of the work.			

Satisfactory	7 – 9 points	The Offeror's response satisfactorily addresses this criterion while missing some key elements. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must meet the minimum needed for adequate performance on this aspect of the work.
Minimal	4 – 6 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is inadequate in certain areas of this factor. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is likely to be insufficient in terms of performance on this aspect of the work.
Poor	1 – 3 points	The Offeror's response minimally addresses the criterion. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is insufficient for the effective performance of the work.
No Response	0 points	The Offeror does not address the criterion.

	STREAM 3 LEGEND FOR SCORING RT4				
Excellent	13 – 15 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is in depth, covering all of the factors, and exceeding the requirement. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure highly effective performance on this aspect of the work.			
Good	10 – 12 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion addresses the requirement well while missing a few key factors. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure more than adequate performance on this aspect of the work.			
Satisfactory	7 – 9 points	The Offeror's response satisfactorily addresses this criterion while missing many key elements. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must meet the minimum needed for adequate performance on this aspect of the work.			
Minimal	4 – 6 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is inadequate in certain areas of this factor. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is likely to be insufficient in terms of performance on this aspect of the work.			
Poor	1 – 3 points	The Offeror's response minimally addresses the criterion. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is insufficient for the effective performance of the work.			
No Response	0 points	The Offeror does not address the criterion.			

	STREAM 4 – PROVISION OF EXPERTISE, INFORMATION GATHERING AND/OR TRAINING SERVICES TO SUPPORT HEALTH IMPACT ASSESSMENT					
Item	Description	Rating Scale	Offeror's Score (to be completed by evaluators)	Cross-Reference to bid (indicate page #)		
RT1	Project Manager  The Offeror SHOULD demonstrate that the proposed Project Manager from MT2 has project management experience by providing relevant documentation for up to three (3) previously managed projects for services similar to or relevant to Stream 4 in Annex "A" – Statement of Requirements. Information provided must include:  1) name of project  2) name of project client and contact name and contact information (phone number or email address, as available);  3) duration of project (in format mm-yyyy to mm-yyyy);  4) description of project manager's responsibilities for management of project, such as development of budget, clear, logical and feasible work plan, approach and methodology, allocation of technical personnel, adherence to project schedule, and timely invoicing.	Up to three (3) points per project (up to one (1) point for relevance and up to two (2) points for description) to a maximum total of nine (9) points.	evaluators)			

## RT2 Project Manager

The Offeror **SHOULD** provide proof of the proposed Project Manager's business interactions with international, national or provincial/state agencies or organizations in relation to health impact assessment activities relevant to Stream 4. Provide relevant documentation for up to two (2) examples.

The proof must clearly describe the nature of the proposed resource's role and contribution to the submitted documentation.

[Examples of agencies/organizations: Health Canada, Impact Assessment Agency of Canada, Public Health Agency of Canada, Indigenous Services Canada, US Environmental Protection Agency, California Environmental Protection Agency, World Health Organization, and International Agency for Research on Cancer].

Any valid documentation is acceptable as proof (e.g., reports, articles, references, expert consultation, etc.).

Proof must include the following information:

- The name of the agency or organization;
- The client contact of the agencies or organizations
- Client contact telephone number and e-mail address
- Description of particulars surrounding the business interactions.

Up to three (3) points will be allocated for each example (up to two (2) points for relevance and one (1) point for appropriate agency) up to a maximum total of six (6) points.

RT3	The Offeror <b>SHOULD</b> provide up to three (3) example documents which demonstrate experience, within the last seven (7) years of this RFSO date of issue, in:  • the preparation of a complete health impact assessment, or effect analyses in support of a health impact assessment,	Up to ten (10) points will be allocated as per the legend below up to a maximum total of thirty (30) points.	
	the preparation of a literature review to support the development of effect pathways regarding changes to economic, social and/or cultural conditions arising from development projects,		
	or		
	the preparation of a literature review on mitigation and/or enhancement measures regarding development projects,		
	or		
	the preparation of a document detailing methodologies/tools for the consideration of Western and/or Indigenous worldviews, the carrying out of gender-based analysis plus, or the characterization of cumulative effects, in support of health impact assessments of development projects and the identification of adverse effect mitigation.		
	The examples must clearly outline the Offeror's role or involvement in the preparation of the example documents.		

RT4	The Offeror (i.e. the firm or the project manager or technical experts) specified in MT2 (please briefly describe roles and responsibilities) must provide up to three (3) examples which demonstrate experience, within the last seven (7) years of this RFSO date of issue, as per Stream 4 of the Statement of Work, in:  • provision of consultation services in support of a health impact assessment,  or  • expert peer review of a complete health impact assessment or of effect analyses in support of a health impact assessment  or	Up to ten (10) points will be allocated for each example as per the legend below up to a maximum total of thirty (30) points.		
	methodology by which to conduct a literature review to support health impact assessments (including search strategies and tools, critical appraisals of studies, tabulation, integrated summary, quality control, etc.),			
	the application of methodologies/tools to consider Western and Indigenous worldviews, conduct a gender-based analysis plus, or characterize cumulative effects in support of health impact assessments of development projects and the identification of adverse effect mitigation.			
	Details must be provided or highlighted demonstrating internal quality assurance procedures.			
		Offeror's Score:		
		Max Score:	75	
		Min Score:	45	

STREAM 4 LEGEND FOR SCORING RT3 and RT4					
Excellent	10 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is in depth, covering all of the factors, and exceeding the requirement. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure highly effective performance on this aspect of the work.			
Good	8 – 9 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion addresses the requirement well while missing a few key factors. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must ensure more than adequate performance on this aspect of the work.			
Satisfactory	6 – 7 points	The Offeror's response satisfactorily addresses this criterion while missing many key elements. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated must meet the minimum needed for adequate performance on this aspect of the work.			
Minimal	3 – 5 points	The Offeror's response to this criterion is inadequate in certain areas of this factor. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is likely to be insufficient in terms of performance on this aspect of the work.			
Poor	1 – 2 points	The Offeror's response minimally addresses the criterion. The knowledge, experience or approach demonstrated is insufficient for the effective performance of the work.			
No Response	0 points	The Offeror does not address the criterion.			

#### 4.1.2 Financial Evaluation

Offerors meeting ALL Mandatory Requirements and obtaining the minimum score in the point rated requirement shall be evaluated on the basis of their Financial Offer. Offerors must submit, along with their Technical Offer, a detailed Financial Offer as indicated in Annex "B".

The price of the offer will be evaluated in Canadian dollars, Applicable Taxes excluded, FOB destination, Canadian customs duties and excise taxes included.

Offerors must provide a firm per diem rate for each year of the Call-up period for the stream for which they have applied.

#### Streams 1, 2 & 4:

For each category, Offerors must indicate their proposed all-inclusive per diem rate for services based on a seven and a half (7.5) hour day. The proposed all-inclusive per diem rates shall be applicable for ALL proposed resources in their respective category.

## Stream 3:

For each category, Offerors must indicate their proposed per diem rate for services based on a seven and a half (7.5) hour day. In order to directly compare financial offers across offerors, the proposed per diem rates should be the standard daily rate for the Project Manager and the technical expert and this should **NOT** include any additional costs related to data generation (e.g., test article procurement, consumables, chemicals and reagents etc.).

### 4.1.3 Basis of Awarding Standing Offer Agreement's (SOA's)

Only the Offerors who have met the mandatory criteria and have received the minimum score on overall point-rated criteria or better shall be considered for further evaluation.

Standing Offers will be awarded so that each Stream will have up to five (5) Offerors.

It is the intent of HC to award Standing Offers to the top five (5) ranked qualified offerors in each stream. The ranking shall be established for an overall order of Offerors per Stream, as per 4.2 below. Call-ups shall be issued based on the methods detailed in section 7.9, Part 7 – Standing Offer and Resulting Call-up Clauses.

#### 4.1.3 Lowest Evaluated Price

The Evaluated Price for responsive offers will be determined as follows: Note to Offerors: Values indicated in the tables below are for example purposes only.

## STEP 1:

An average per diem rate for the proposed Project Manager will be determined as follows:

Per Diem Rate - Project Manager

	Year 1 of SO	Year 2 of SO	Year 3 of SO	Year 4 of SO	Year 5 of SO	Total
Offeror No. 1	\$925.00	\$930.00	\$930.00	\$935.00	\$940.00	\$4,660.00
Offeror No. 2	\$940.00	\$945.00	\$950.00	\$955.00	\$955.00	\$4,745.00
Offeror No. 3	\$930.00	\$940.00	\$950.00	\$960.00	\$970.00	\$4,750.00

The average per diem rate (Project Manager) will be established by dividing the total above by 5 as follows:

Offeror No. 1: \$4,660 divided by 5 = \$932 average per diem rate Offeror No. 2: \$4,745 divided by 5 = \$949 average per diem rate Offeror No. 3: \$4,750 divided by 5 = \$950 average per diem rate

## STEP 2:

An average per diem rate for the proposed Technical Experts will be

## Per Diem Rate - Technical Experts

	Year 1 of SO	Year 2 of SO	Year 3 of SO	Year 4 of SO	Year 5 of SO	Total
Offeror No. 1	\$725.00	\$730.00	\$730.00	\$735.00	\$740.00	\$3,660.00
Offeror No. 2	\$740.00	\$745.00	\$750.00	\$755.00	\$755.00	\$3,745.00
Offeror No. 3	\$730.00	\$740.00	\$750.00	\$760.00	\$770.00	\$3,750.00

The average per diem rate (Technical Expert) will be established by dividing the total above by 5 as follows:

Offeror No.1: \$3,660.00 divided by 5= \$732 average per diem rate Offeror No.2: \$3,745.00 divided by 5= \$749.00 average per diem rate Offeror No. 3: \$3,750.00 divided by 5= \$750.00 average per diem rate

## STEP 3:

The average per diem rate, Project Manager, from step 1 and the average per diem rate, Technical Expert, from step 2 above, will be added together to determine each Offeror's total evaluation price, as follows:

Offeror No.1: \$932.00 + \$732.00=\$1,664.00 Offeror No.2: \$949.00 + \$749.00=\$1,698.00 Offeror No.3: \$950.00 + \$750.00=\$1,700.00

In this example, Offeror No.1 has the Lowest Evaluated Price.

#### 4.2 Basis of Selection

## 4.2.1 Highest Combined Rating of Technical Merit (70%) and Price (30%)

- 1. To be declared responsive, a bid must:
  - a. comply with all the requirements of the bid solicitation; and
  - b. meet all mandatory criteria; and
  - c. obtain the required minimum of <u>45</u> points overall for the technical evaluation criteria which are subject to point rating.
     The rating is performed on a scale of **75** points.
- 2. Bids not meeting (choose "(a) or (b) or (c)" will be declared non-responsive.
- 3. The selection will be based on the highest responsive combined rating of technical merit and price. The ratio will be **70%** for the technical merit and **30%** for the price.
- 4. To establish the technical merit score, the overall technical score for each responsive bid will be determined as follows: total number of points obtained / maximum number of points available multiplied by the ratio of **70%**.
- 5. To establish the pricing score, each responsive bid will be prorated against the lowest evaluated price and the ratio of **30%**.
- 6. For each responsive bid, the technical merit score and the pricing score will be added to determine its combined rating.
- 7. Neither the responsive bid obtaining the highest technical score nor the one with the lowest evaluated price will necessarily be accepted. The responsive bid with the highest combined rating of technical merit and price will be recommended for award of a contract.
- 8. The ranking of the Offerors per Stream will be determined by highest combined rating (1st) to lowest combined rating (5th). Any additional responsive offers based on the above methodology that fall outside of the top 5 offers will not be awarded a Standing Offer.

The table below illustrates an example where all three offers are responsive and the selection of the Offeror is determined by a 70/30 ratio of technical merit and price, respectively. The total available points equal 75 and the lowest evaluated price is \$1,664.

	OFFEROR 1	OFFEROR 2	OFFEROR 3
Overall Technical Score	55/75	49/75	50/75
Offer Evaluated Price	\$1,664	\$1,698	\$1,700

	Technical Merit Score	55/75 x 70 =51.33	49/75 x 70 = 45.73	50/75 x 70 = 46.66
Calculation	Pricing Score	1664/1664 x 30 = 30	1664/1698 x 30 = 29.40	1664/1700 x 30 = 29.36
Combined Rating		81.33	75.13	76.02
Overall Rating		1st	3rd	2nd

## 4.2.2 Standing Offer Allocation – Proportional Basis

Standing Offer(s) will be issued on a proportional basis such that the highest-ranked SO Holder per Stream is allocated the largest predetermined portion of funds available for that Stream; the second highest-ranked SO Holder is allocated the second largest predetermined portion of funds available for that Stream, etc. as follows:

Highest (First) Ranked SO Holder:
Second Highest Ranked SO Holder:
Third Highest Ranked SO Holder:
Fourth Highest Ranked SO Holder:
Fifth Highest Ranked SO Holder:

30% of the funds available per Stream
20% of the funds available per Stream
15% of the funds available per Stream
10% of the funds available per Stream

If the number of responsive offers in either Stream is less than indicated above, the allocation percentages will be adjusted accordingly.

#### PART 5 - CERTIFICATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Offerors must provide the required certifications and additional information to be issued a standing offer.

The certifications provided by offerors to Canada are subject to verification by Canada at all times. Unless specified otherwise, Canada will declare an offer non-responsive, will have the right to set-aside a standing offer, or will declare a contractor in default if any certification made by the Offeror is found to be untrue whether made knowingly or unknowingly during the offer evaluation period, during the Standing Offer period, or during the contract period.

The Standing Offer Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Offeror's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Standing Offer Authority will render the offer non-responsive, result in the setting aside of the Standing Offer or constitute a default under the Contract.

## 5.1 Certifications Required with the Offer

Offerors must submit the following duly completed certifications as part of their offer.

#### 5.1.1 Integrity Provisions - Declaration of Convicted Offences

In accordance with the Integrity Provisions of the Standard Instructions, all offerors must provide with their offer, **if applicable**, the declaration form available on the <u>Forms for the Integrity Regime</u> website (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html), to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

### 5.2 Certifications Precedent to the Issuance of a Standing Offer and Additional Information

The certifications and additional information listed below should be submitted with the offer but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications or additional information is not completed and submitted as requested, the Standing Offer Authority will inform the Offeror of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to provide the certifications or the additional information listed below within the time frame provided will render the offer non-responsive.

## 5.2.1 Integrity Provisions – Required Documentation

In accordance with the section titled Information to be provided when bidding, contracting or entering into a real property agreement of the <u>Ineligibility and Suspension Policy</u> (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html), the Offeror must provide the required documentation, as applicable, to be given further consideration in the procurement process.

#### 5.2.2 Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity - Standing Offer Certification

By submitting an offer, the Offeror certifies that the Offeror, and any of the Offeror's members if the Offeror is a Joint Venture, is not named on the Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid<u>"</u> list ) available at the bottom of the page of the <u>Employment and Social</u> Development Canada (ESDC) - Labour's website.

Canada will have the right to declare an offer non-responsive, or to set-aside a Standing Offer, if the Offeror, or any member of the Offeror if the Offeror is a Joint Venture, appears on the "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list at the time of issuing of a Standing Offer or during the period of the Standing Offer.

## 5.2.3 Additional Certifications Precedent to Issuance of a Standing Offer

## 5.2.3.1 Status and Availability of Resources

M3020T (2016-01-28) Status of Availability of Resources – Offer

## 5.2.3.2 Education and Experience

A3010T (2010-08-16) Education and Experience – Offer

## PART 6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

## 6.1 Security Requirements

- 1. Before issuance of a standing offer, the following conditions must be met:
  - (a) the Offeror must hold a valid organization security clearance as indicated in Part 7A Standing Offer;

## 6.2 Insurance Requirements

G1005C (2016-01-28) Insurance - No Specific Requirement

#### PART 7 - STANDING OFFER AND RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

#### A. STANDING OFFER

#### 7.1 Offer

**7.1.1** The Offeror offers to fulfill the requirement in accordance with the Statement of Work at Annex "A".

### 7.2 Security Requirements

**7.2.1** The following security requirements (SRCL and related clauses provided by the Contract Security Program) apply and form part of the Standing Offer.

There are various security requirements associated which may be required in a resulting Call-up against this Standing Offer. Each security requirement will be determined prior to the issuance of each resulting Call-up.

### 7.2.2 No Security (SRCL Annex C)

<u>Unscreened Contractors must be escorted:</u>

Unscreened contractors must be escorted by an employee or Commissionaire at all times when visiting GoC facilities.

Information which is to be used in the development of the contracted product, as reference material or otherwise made available to the contractor must be unclassified material and considered to be releasable to the public by HC/PHAC and/or The Government of Canada.

No Protected or Classified information is to be made available to the contractor, used in the production of the contracted product, or produced as a result of this Standing Offer.

## 7.2.3 Additional Security

Call-ups for requirements that are not PROTECTED/ CLASSIFIED have no security requirement.

#### 7.3 Standard Clauses and Conditions

All clauses and conditions identified in the Standing Offer and resulting contract(s) by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

#### 7.3.1 General Conditions

<u>2005</u> (2022-12-01) General Conditions - Standing Offers - Goods or Services, apply to and form part of the Standing Offer.

### 7.3.2 Standing Offers Reporting

The Offeror must compile and maintain records on its provision of goods, services or both to the federal government under contracts resulting from the Standing Offer. This data must include all purchases, including those paid for by a Government of Canada Acquisition Card.

The Offeror must provide these data in accordance with the reporting requirements detailed below. If some data are not available, the reason must be indicated. If no goods or services are provided during a given period, the Offeror must still provide a "nil" report.

On a quarterly basis within thirty (30) days of month end for **June**, **September**, **December** and **March**, the Offeror **MUST** provide detailed usage under the Standing Offer Agreement (SOA) to the Standing Offer Authority: Darlene. Fisher 2@canada.ca. An email is still required by the Offeror for NIL activity

## 7.4 Term of Standing Offer

### 7.4.1 Period of the Standing Offer

The period for making call-ups against the Standing Offer is from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2029.

## 7.4.2 Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements (CLCAs)

The Standing Offer (SO) is for the delivery of the requirement detailed in the SO to the Identified Users across Canada, excluding locations within Yukon, Northwest Territories, Nunavut, Quebec, and Labrador that are subject to Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements (CLCAs). Any requirement for deliveries to locations within CLCAs areas within Yukon, Northwest Territories, Nunavut, Quebec, or Labrador will have to be treated as a separate procurement, outside of the standing offer.

### 7.5 Authorities

#### 7.5.1 Standing Offer Authority

The Standing Offer Authority is:

Wesley Phillips A/Team Lead, PMAMD

Health Canada
Chief Financial Officer Branch
Procurement and Investment Management Directorate
Procurement, Materiel and Asset Management Division
200 Eglantine Driveway
Ottawa, ON
Canada
K1A 0K9

T: 613-941-2067

E: wesley.phillips@hc-sc.gc.ca

The Standing Offer Authority is responsible for the establishment of the Standing Offer, its administration and its revision, if applicable. Upon the making of a call-up, as Contracting Authority, the Standing Offer Authority is responsible for any contractual issues relating to individual call-ups made against the Standing Offer by any Identified User.

## 7.5.2 Project Authority

The Project Authority for the Standing Offer is:

(to be inserted at contract award)

The Project Authority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the Work will be carried out pursuant to a call-up under the Standing Offer and is responsible for all the technical content of the Work under the resulting Contract.

#### 7.5.3 Offeror's Representative

(to be inserted at contract award)

#### 7.6 Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants

By providing information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a <u>Public Service Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this information will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports, in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01</u> of the Treasury Board Secretariat of Canada.

### 7.7 Identified Users

The Identified User authorized to make call-ups against the Standing Offer is: Health Canada (HC).

#### 7.8 Call-up Procedures

Health Canada's objective will be:

- To utilize the services of each SOA firm retained when and where possible according to the call- up methodology; and
- To distribute overall call-up value across the list of firms holding SOAs according to the proportions assigned at SOA award based on overall ranking.

Health Canada will enter into an individual Call-up against any of the Standing Offers up to a maximum not to exceed **\$250,000.00 CAD** (including Goods and Services Tax, Harmonized Sales Tax and all amendments). Call-ups will be awarded in the following method:

Health Canada will select the SOA Holder of best fit for any resultant Call-up. The SOA Holder of best fit will be determined based upon the following factors:

- 1) Applicable Stream;
- 2) Relevance of subject matter expertise of the SOA Holder and/or of its resources to the nature of the work to be done under the call-up
- 3) Availability of the SOA Holder and its resource(s) to conduct the work and meet any and all required timelines;

- 4) Operational requirements; and,
- 5) Security requirements.

The Project Authority for that specific work will provide the SOA Holder with a draft Statement of Work (SOW) and give the SOA Holder a minimum of five (5) business days or 48 hours for urgent requests to confirm their availability and confirm which authorized personnel will be assigned to the work. In some cases, the Project Authority will provide the SOA Holder with an estimated level of effort (in days), but where an estimated level of effort in not provided by the Project Authority, the SOA Holder must submit their estimated level of effort for the work.

In the event that the SOA Holder cannot meet the work requirements, the same process is repeated until an SOA Holder meets all the requirements.

A firm/fixed price for any request shall be established and agreed upon by the Project Authority and the selected Standing Offer Holder using the firm per diem rate(s), estimated level of effort (7.5 hours per day), and, for Stream 4 only, fair market value for travel and living expenses and miscellaneous expenses.

It is understood and agreed to that the Standing Offer Holder(s) shall not commence any work until authorized in writing by a Call-Up issued by the Contracting Authority.

It is understood and agreed that failure to provide written notification of availability within the time frame specified will be interpreted as being unable to perform the services and will result in the setting aside of the Call-up for the specific work request in question.

### 7.9 Call-up Instrument

The Work will be authorized or confirmed by the Identified User(s) using the duly completed forms as identified in paragraph 2 below.

- 1. Call-ups must be made by Identified Users' authorized representatives under the Standing Offer and must be for goods or services or combination of goods and services included in the Standing Offer at the prices and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Standing Offer.
- Any of the following forms could be used which are available through <u>PWGSC Forms Catalogue</u> website:
  - PWGSC-TPSGC 942 Call-up Against a Standing Offer
  - PWGSC-TPGSC 942-2 Call-up Against a Standing Offer Multiple Delivery
  - PWGSC-TPSGC 944 Call-up Against Multiple Standing Offers (English version)
  - PWGSC-TPSGC 945 Commande subséquente à plusieurs offres à commandes (French version)

#### 7.10 Limitation of Call-ups

Individual call-ups against the Standing Offer must not exceed **\$250,000.00 CAD** (Applicable Taxes included).

### 7.11 Financial Limitation

The total cost to Canada resulting from call ups against the resulting Standing Offers must not exceed the sum of \$(to be inserted at contract award) (Applicable Taxes excluded) unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Standing Offer Authority. The Offeror must not perform any work or services or supply any articles in response to call ups which would cause the total cost to Canada to exceed the said sum, unless an increase is so authorized through a formal amendment.

The Offeror must notify the Standing Offer Authority as to the adequacy of this sum when 75 percent of this amount has been committed, or four (4) months before the expiry date of the Standing Offer, whichever comes first. However, if at any time, the Offeror considers that the said sum may be exceeded, the Offeror must promptly notify the Standing Offer Authority.

## 7.12 Priority of Documents

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that subsequently appears on the list.

- a) the call up against the Standing Offer, including any annexes;
- b) the articles of the Standing Offer;
- the general conditions <u>2005</u> (2022-12-01), General Conditions Standing Offers Goods or Services:
- d) the general conditions <u>2010B</u> (2022-12-01), General Conditions Professional Services (Medium Complexity);
- e) Annex A, Statement of Work;
- f) Annex B, Basis of Payment;
- g) Annex C, Security Requirements Check List;
- h) the Offeror's offer dated \_\_\_\_\_ (to be inserted at contract award)

#### 7.13 Certifications and Additional Information

#### 7.13.1 Compliance

Unless specified otherwise, the continuous compliance with the certifications provided by the Offeror with its offer or precedent to issuance of the Standing Offer (SO), and the ongoing cooperation in providing additional information are conditions of issuance of the SO and failure to comply will constitute the Offeror in default. Certifications are subject to verification by Canada during the entire period of the SO and of any resulting contract that would continue beyond the period of the SO.

#### 7.13.2 SACC Manual Clauses

M3020C (2016-01-28) Status and Availability of Resources – Standing Offer

### 7.14 Applicable Laws

The Standing Offer and any contract resulting from the Standing Offer must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Ontario.

## 7.15 Transition to an e-Procurement Solution (EPS)

During the period of the Standing Offer, Canada may transition to an EPS for more efficient processing and management of individual call-ups for any or all of the SO's applicable goods and services. Canada reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make the use of the new e-procurement solution mandatory.

Canada agrees to provide the Offeror with at least a three-month notice to allow for any measures necessary for the integration of the Offer into the EPS. The notice will include a detailed information package indicating the requirements, as well as any applicable guidance and support.

If the Offeror chooses not to offer their goods or services through the e-procurement solution, the Standing Offer may be set aside by Canada.

#### 7.16 Additional Authorized Personnel

The Offeror may submit additional authorized personnel above the minimum requirement to be evaluated and authorized to work under the Standing Offer. Submissions must be submitted to the Standing Offer Authority of the SOA via e-mail and include the following information:

- 1) Name of resource;
- 2) Stream and category of resource;
- 3) Complete Evaluation Grid from Part 4 showing how resource meets mandatory and point-rated technical evaluation criteria;
- 4) CV/Resume of resource, as required;
- 5) Security details, including: file number, level of clearance, date of expiry, and date of birth (in order to validate clearance).

Health Canada will evaluate the submission in accordance with the original RFSO document and any amendments and may evaluate submissions on a quarterly basis.

Once a submission is deemed compliant, the personnel will be added to the list of authorized personnel, which will be managed internally.

#### B. RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from a call-up against the Standing Offer.

#### 7.1 Statement of Work

The Contractor must perform the Work described in the call-up against the Standing Offer.

### 7.2 Standard Clauses and Conditions

#### 7.2.1 General Conditions

<u>2010B</u> (2022-12-01), General Conditions - Professional Services (Medium Complexity) apply to and form part of the Contract.

### 7.3 Term of Contract

#### 7.3.1 Period of the Contract

The period of work shall be in accordance with the call-up against the Standing Offer.

#### 7.4 Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants

By providing information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a <u>Public Service Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this information will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports, in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy Notice: 2019-01</u> of the Treasury Board Secretariat of Canada.

## 7.5 Payment

### 7.5.1 Basis of Payment

In consideration of the Offeror satisfactorily completing all of its obligations under the Call-up, the Offeror will be paid a firm unit price(s), as specified in Annex B – Basis of Payment in accordance with the call-up against the Standing Offer.

### 7.5.2 Limitation of Expenditure

- 1. Canada's total liability to the Contractor under the Contract must not exceed the value indicated on the call-up. Customs duties are included and Applicable Taxes are extra.
- 2. No increase in the total liability of Canada or in the price of the Work resulting from any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work, will be authorized or paid to the Contractor unless these design changes, modifications or interpretations have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work. The Contractor must not perform any work or provide any service that would result in Canada's total liability being exceeded before obtaining the written approval of the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must notify the Contracting Authority in writing as to the adequacy of this sum:
  - a. when it is 75% committed, or
  - b. four months before the contract expiry date, or
  - c. as soon as the Contractor considers that the contract funds provided are inadequate for the completion of the Work,

whichever comes first.

3. If the notification is for inadequate contract funds, the Contractor must provide to the Contracting Authority a written estimate for the additional funds required. Provision of such information by the Contractor does not increase Canada's liability.

### 7.5.3 Monthly Payment

H1008C (2008-05-12) Monthly Payment

## 7.6 Invoicing Instructions

 The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the section entitled "Invoice Submission" of the general conditions. Invoices cannot be submitted until all work identified in the invoice is completed.

Each invoice must be supported by:

- a. a copy of time sheets to support the time claimed;
- b. a copy of the release document and any other documents as specified in the Contract;
- c. a copy of the invoices, receipts, vouchers for all direct expenses, and all travel and living expenses (as applicable):
- 2. Invoices must be distributed as follows:
  - a. The original and one (1) copy must be forwarded to the following address for certification and payment:

<u>p2p.invoices-factures@hc-sc.gc.ca</u> (Accounting Operations)

(to be inserted at contract award) (Project Authority)

#### 7.7 Insurance

SACC Manual clause G1005C (2016-01-28), Insurance – No Specific Requirement

## 7.8 Dispute Resolution

- (a) The parties agree to maintain open and honest communication about the Work throughout and after the performance of the contract.
- (b) The parties agree to consult and co-operate with each other in the furtherance of the contract and promptly notify the other party or parties and attempt to resolve problems or differences that may arise.
- (c) If the parties cannot resolve a dispute through consultation and cooperation, the parties agree to consult a neutral third party offering alternative dispute resolution services to attempt to address the dispute.
- (d) Options of alternative dispute resolution services can be found on Canada's Buy and Sell website under the heading "Dispute Resolution".

#### ANNEX "A"

#### STATEMENT OF WORK

### 1.0 Scope

1.1 Title: Provision of Scientific Expertise to Support Human Health Risk Assessment

#### 1.2 Introduction:

The Safe Environments Directorate (SED) wishes to establish various Standing Offers on a range of risk assessment activities to support its mandated roles to protect the health of Canadians from hazards posed by chemical substances, including air and water contaminants, novel substances and contaminated sites through risk assessment. The main purpose of the standing offer is to obtain a list of qualified companies that have a broad range of expertise in the area of human health risk assessment and provide scientific services which may include gathering scientific information for conducting a human health risk assessment, development of methodologies and tools for human health risk assessment, providing scientific expertise and training on human health risk assessments (may include exposure assessment or hazard characterization), scientific peer review of assessment reports or scientific manuscripts and consultations on scientific issues relating to the conduct of human health risk assessment of chemicals, air and water contaminants, novel substances and contaminated sites.

### 1.3 Definition of a Standing Offer:

A Standing Offer is not a contract. It is an offer from a supplier to provide services at a prearranged pricing basis and under set terms and conditions for a specified period on an as-and-when requested basis.

A separate contract is entered into each time a call-up is made against a Standing Offer. Health Canada's liability shall be limited to the actual value of the call-ups made within the period specified in the Standing Offer.

### 1.4 Objectives of the Requirement:

The objective of this Request for Standing Offer (RFSO) is to establish competitively-awarded Standing Offer Agreements (SO's) for up to five (5) qualified firms in each of the four (4) Streams of Work indicated under this RFSO (for a total of up to 20 qualified firms) to provide their service for the Provision of Scientific Expertise to Support Human Health Risk Assessment as set out under this RFSO.

#### 1.5 Estimated Value:

The total estimated cumulative value of all Standing Offer Agreements resulting from this RFSO shall not exceed \$20 million excluding all applicable taxes over a period of 5 years. The four (4) streams and maximum estimated values per stream over the five (5) year period during which the Standing Offers are in effect as follows:

**Stream1** - Provision of Scientific Expertise To Conduct Human Health Risk Assessment Or Scientific Peer Review Or Consultation In Support Of Human Health Risk Assessment (\$6 million excluding applicable taxes)

**Stream 2** - Provision of Information Gathering Services to Support Human Health Risk Assessment (\$5 million excluding applicable taxes)

**Stream 3** – New Approach Method (NAM) Data Generation For The Development Or Application Of NAM In Support Of Human Health Risk Assessment (\$4 million excluding applicable taxes)

**Stream 4** - Provision of Expertise, Information Gathering and/or Training Services to Support Health Impact Assessment (\$5 million excluding applicable taxes)

## 1.6 Background, Assumptions and Specific Scope of the Requirement:

Safe Environments Directorate (SED) plays a key role in identifying, assessing and managing the human health risks posed by chemicals, air and water contaminants, novel substances and contaminated sites. The directorate develops drinking water and air quality guidelines and conducts human health risk assessments of chemical substances, contaminated sites and industrial sectors to determine whether there is a need for risk management and reduction of exposures. The assessment of whether a substance or a contaminated site or an industrial sector poses a risk of concern to human health is largely based on available information, including information gathered from scientific data/literature, stakeholders (including industry), ongoing research activities and existing surveillance/monitoring studies. A critical aspect of the risk assessment process, which impacts final decision-making, involves external scientific peer-review by experts to address any critical issues identified, as well as the adequacy of data coverage and defensibility of the conclusion(s). The human health risk assessments generated by SED contribute to the development of policy, program initiatives, as well as scientifically sound risk management decisions.

In addition, as we aim to reduce, replace or refine vertebrate animal toxicity testing and incorporate alternative methods under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act (CEPA, 1999), there is a need for new approach method (NAM) development and NAM data generation to support human health risk assessments. NAMs are broadly defined as any technology, methodology, approach or combination thereof that can be used to replace, reduce or refine animal toxicity testing and allow for more rapid or effective prioritization and/or assessment of chemicals. These methods may include the use of computer-based (i.e., in silico) models, modernized whole-organism assays or assays with biological molecules, cells (i.e., in vitro), tissues or organs (e.g., microphysiological systems), as well as exposure prediction approaches. NAMs are particularly useful in data-poor situations, as NAM data can be generated much faster than using traditional test methods. Data generated by NAMs are increasingly being used to provide hazard, exposure, and risk information for prioritizing chemicals for further action and can contribute to the weight-of-evidence in chemical risk assessments. Additionally, NAM data may be substituted for traditional data in a chemical risk assessment when the NAM is demonstrated to provide a scientifically justified measure of the endpoint under investigation.

In order to facilitate SED's fulfillment of its obligations in relation of the health risks posed by chemical substances, SED requires professional services for various activities. The specific scope of the work being sought includes, but is not limited to the following:

- Conduct or coordination of human exposure assessment, hazard characterization or human health risk assessment
- Conduct or coordination of scientific peer reviews / peer consultations in various formats (e.g., panel consultations, written reviews)
- Gathering and summation of information relevant to human exposure assessment, hazard characterization or human health risk assessment

- Coordination of training or development of training or guidance materials on "traditional/classic" and new/emerging approaches and methodologies in human health risk assessment
- Development of NAMs related to human health hazard, exposure assessment and/or human health risk assessment
- Conduct NAM-based toxicity testing of selected chemicals to assess/inform the following: endocrine disruption, genetic toxicity, transcriptomics, repeatdose toxicity, reproductive/developmental toxicity, inhalation toxicity, toxicokinetics, toxicokinetic modelling, exposure, exposure modelling

### 2.0 Requirements

#### 2.1 Personnel:

One (1) Project Manager and up to ten (10) Technical Experts are required for each Stream. A minimum of one (1) Technical Expert is required.

### 2.2 Tasks, Activities, Deliverables and Milestones:

The specific activities, deliverables and associated milestones will be articulated in each call-up for services against the Standing Offer. These may include but not limited to the following activities, deliverables and associated milestones:

#### **Tasks and Activities:**

- Stream 1 –. Provision of Scientific Expertise To Conduct Human Health Risk Assessment Or Scientific Peer Review Or Consultation To Support Human Health Risk Assessment, including, but not limited to:
  - Scientific consultation and/or scientific interpretation/data analysis on health hazard characterization, exposure and/or risk assessment issues
  - Preparation of draft human exposure assessments, health hazard characterization and/or human health risk assessments for chemicals, air and water contaminants, novel substances or contaminated sites
  - Peer-review of draft scientific human health risk assessments and prepared manuscripts
- **Stream 2** Provision of Information Gathering Services to Support Human Health Risk Assessment, including, but not limited to:
  - Gathering, analyzing and summarizing available scientific data and/or literature on the health effects of and potential human exposure to chemicals, air and water contaminants, novel substances or contaminated sites into written reports
  - Gathering, analyzing and summarizing available scientific data and/or literature on microbiological contaminants, drinking water treatment technologies, including related residuals management, and analytical methods into written reports
  - Coordinating national/international scientific input and comments on emerging issues and challenges in risk assessment, including provision of technical advice on science-based policy considerations in the context of human health risk assessment.

- Integrating and providing written summaries of hazard, exposure or risk assessments from international, national or provincial/state agencies or organizations.
- Stream 3 New Approach Method (NAM) Data Generation For The Development Or Application Of NAM In Support Of Human Health Risk Assessment, including, but not limited to:
  - Development of study protocols and study designs
  - Development and application/conduct of NAM to generate concentration-response data (except for in silico models, where binary outcomes are acceptable) for selected chemicals to fill data gaps and/or in support of the replacement of animal toxicity testing. Relevant examples include NAMs or integrated test methods to assess/inform the following: endocrine disruption, genetic toxicity, transcriptomics, repeat dose toxicity, reproductive/developmental toxicity, inhalation toxicity, toxicokinetics, toxicokinetic modelling, exposure, exposure modelling
  - Scientific interpretation of data resulting from NAMs used to address hazard characterization, exposure and risk assessment issues.

**Stream 4 –** Provision of Expertise, Information Gathering and/or Training Services to Support Health Impact Assessment, including, but not limited to:

- Consultation and/or interpretation/data analysis to support the health impact assessment of development projects.
- Gathering, analyzing and summarizing available data and/or literature regarding development projects' effects on human environments, including their interactions (i.e., effect pathways), and/or relevant mitigation and enhancement measures, along with health implications.
- Integrating and providing written summaries of health impact assessments from international, national or provincial/state agencies or organizations.
   Developing methodologies, tools and ways to apply emerging approaches or technologies regarding the consideration of Western and/or Indigenous worldviews, gender-based analysis plus, or cumulative effect characterization for health impact assessments of development projects and adverse effect mitigation

#### **Deliverables:**

The specific deliverables will be determined in each call-up against the standing offer. These may include but are not limited to the following:

#### Stream 1:

- Contractor will be expected to prepare high quality, comprehensive and scientifically acceptable reports;
- Contractor will provide peer review reports with a critique of the adequacy, completeness and interpretation of scientific/technical information included in assessment reports or manuscripts;
- Provision of services respecting potential sensitivity of data/information contained in the documents.

#### Stream 2:

- Contractor will be expected to prepare high quality, comprehensive and scientifically acceptable reports;
- Contractor will submit reports to Health Canada detailing the methodologies and processes involved in identifying, analyzing and summarizing relevant scientific information and outcomes of external expert consultation for activities involving coordination of scientific inputs;
- Provision of services respecting potential sensitivity of data/information contained in the documents.

#### Stream 3:

- Contractor will be expected to prepare high quality, comprehensive and scientifically acceptable reports;
- Contractor will prepare and provide materials related to development and application of new methodologies and tools to support human health risk assessment activities;
- For NAM data generation reports, contractor to provide an interpretation of the result of each tested compound in the given assay/NAM, as well as raw NAM test data, summarized data and results of appropriately applied statistical analysis;
- Provision of services respecting potential sensitivity of data/information contained in the documents.

#### Stream 4:

- Contractor will be expected to provide consultation or analytical services to support the health impact assessment of development projects.
- Alternatively, Contractor will be expected to gather, analyze and summarize available data and/or literature regarding development projects' effects on human environments, including their interactions (i.e., effect pathways), and/or relevant mitigation and enhancement measures, along with health implications.
- As another alternative, Contractor will be expected to develop methodologies, tools and ways to apply emerging approaches or technologies regarding the consideration of Western and/or Indigenous worldviews, gender-based analysis plus, or cumulative effect characterization for health impact assessments of development projects and adverse effect mitigation.

### 2.3 Specifications and Standards:

The Bidder must indicate for which Stream(s) they intend to bid:

**Stream 1** – Provision of Scientific Expertise To Conduct Human Health Risk Assessment Or Scientific Peer Review Or Consultation To Support Human Health Risk Assessment

(Knowledge of and experience in scientific peer-review, scientific consultation on interpretation of toxicological, epidemiological or exposure related information, study protocol and design, (bio)monitoring data, weight of evidence, mode of action, uncertainty factors)

**Stream 2** – Provision of Information Gathering Services to Support Human Health Risk Assessment

(Knowledge of and experience in systematic review of scientific data and/or literature, scientific data gathering, extraction and summarization, chemistry, toxicology, epidemiology, microbiology, drinking water treatment technologies and analytical methods, integration and interpretation of risk assessments from international and other national organizations).

**Stream 3** – New Approach Method (NAM) Data Generation For The Development Or Application Of NAM In Support Of Human Health Risk Assessment

(Knowledge of and experience in development and/or conduct of new approach methods (NAMs) to fill data gaps and/or in support of the replacement of animal toxicity testing such as NAMs or integrated test methods to assess/inform the following endpoints: endocrine disruption, genetic toxicity, transcriptomics, acute toxicity, repeat dose toxicity, reproductive/developmental toxicity, inhalation toxicity, toxicokinetics, toxicokinetic modelling, exposure, exposure modelling)

**Stream 4 –** Provision of Expertise, Information Gathering and/or Training Services to Support Health Impact Assessment

(Knowledge of and experience in one or more of the following areas pertaining to health impact assessments: consulting or analytical services in the context of development projects; data reporting or literature reviews regarding development projects' effects on human environments, including their interactions (i.e., effect pathways), and possibly relevant mitigation and enhancement measures, along with health implications; and/or the development and application of new methodologies, tools and emerging approaches or technologies regarding the consideration of Western and/or Indigenous worldviews, gender-based analysis plus, or cumulative effect characterization.

#### 2.4 Technical, Operations and Organizational Environment:

This will be determined as per the call-up issued.

### 2.5 Method and Source of Acceptance:

All reports, deliverables, documentation and all services rendered under a Call-Up under this Standing Offer are subject to review by the Departmental Representative or a designated representative that has been identified in the Call-up. Should any report, document or service not be to the satisfaction of the Departmental Representative, or a designated representative, as submitted, the Departmental Representative shall have the right to reject it or require correction before payment will be authorized.

## 2.6 Project Management Control Procedures:

The Standing Offer Holder(s) shall manage service delivery to Health Canada in relation to Callups under this Standing Offer Agreement in accordance with all applicable Acts, Codes, Departmental and/or Federal Government regulations, policies and procedures.

The Standing Offer Holder(s) shall ensure that all deployed personnel (resources) are properly trained to fulfill their responsibilities. In addition, the Standing Offer Holder(s) is/are required to

ensure that all of its assigned personnel are operating at all times in accordance with all applicable legislation, regulations, codes and policies.

The individual identified in the proposal as the Project Coordinator or Technical Authority shall fulfil obligations outlined in Section 3.2.

### 2.7 Change Management Procedures:

Any change to the Scope of the work shall be agreed to in writing between the Standing Offer Holder(s) and the Departmental Representative and shall be in the form of a written amendment to the Standing Offer Agreement between the Standing Offer Agreement Holder and Contracting Authority.

## 2.8 Ownership of Intellectual Property:

The Intellectual Property arising from the performance of the work under any call-ups against the Standing Offer will vest with the Contractor, unless specified in the individual Call-up.

## 2.9 Applicable Law:

The SOA and any resultant Call-Ups shall be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the Parties, determined by the laws in force in Ontario.

#### 3.0 Other Terms and Conditions of the SOW

#### 3.1 Authorities:

#### **HC Project/Technical Authority or Departmental Representative:**

- Identified in each individual Call-up document;
- The HC Project/Technical Authority or Departmental Representative or their delegate is responsible for all matters concerning the technical content of the Work under any resulting Call-up against the Standing Offer. Any proposed changes to the scope of the Call-up are to be discussed with the HC Project/Technical Authority or Departmental Representative, and confirmed by a Call-up amendment issued by the HC Contracting Officer.

### **Contracting Officer or Delegate:**

- · Identified on the front cover of this RFSO;
- Any changes to the Standing Offer(s) must be authorized in writing by the Contracting Officer;
- The Standing Offer Holder(s) are not to perform work in excess of or outside the scope of these Standing Offer(s) based on written requests from any government personnel other than the Contracting Officer.

### 3.2 Health Canada's Obligations:

Health Canada will provide the following to the Standing Offer Holder(s):

- · Clear description of reporting requirements;
- Timely feedback on required tasks; and
- Access to appropriate staff to address issues and answer questions, as required.

## 3.3 Standing Offer Holder(s) Obligations:

The management by the Standing Offer Holder for service delivery to HC in relation to the SOA shall be undertaken in accordance with all applicable Acts, Codes, Departmental and/or Federal government regulations, policies and procedures.

The Standing Offer Holder must provide the services of the authorized personnel approved in the SOA to perform the work. Suppliers who are awarded a Standing Offer Agreement may however provide additional resources under the technical expert prior to any resulting Call-up providing the proposed resource(s) meet the Technical evaluation criteria and the per diem rate under the Financial Table for that category set out in this RFSO.

The Standing Offer Holder shall ensure that all deployed personnel are properly trained to fulfil their responsibilities. In addition, the Standing Offer Holder is required to ensure that all of its assigned personnel hold the appropriate security screening/clearance as applicable to any resulting Call-Up relative to the security categorization of the services required and that they are operating at all times in accordance with all applicable legislation, regulations, codes and policies.

The Standing Offer Holder shall provide to the Contracting Authority quarterly reports on activity of the Standing Offer, showing the number and total value of Call- Ups by each branch. Reports shall be submitted no later than fifteen days after the designated reporting period.

If a Standing Offer Holder has received no Call-Ups during this period they must confirm this (example – NIL). The Offeror understands that failure to comply may result in the setting aside of the Standing Offer.

Each Usage Report is to be comprised of the type of information shown in the example below:

Offeror:				
Branch and	Call-Up No.	Date issued	Security level	Dollar Value
Division				(excluding tax)
HECS	4500XXXXXX	August 13, 2013	N/A	\$45,000.00
Subtotal for		Total Year to Date		
Current Period:		Value:		

#### 3.4 Location of Work, Work Suite and Delivery Point:

Unless otherwise stated, the work shall be conducted at the Standing Offer Holder(s)'s normal place of business with the submission of deliverables to Health Canada's offices as per the individual Call-up.

Due to existing workload and deadlines, all personnel assigned to any SOA resulting from this RFSO must be ready to work in close and frequent contact with the Project Authority and other departmental personnel.

#### 3.5 Limitation of the Standing Offer Agreement:

For the duration of the SOA, the Standing Offer Holder agrees to notify in writing the Contracting Authority of their desire to withdraw from the SOA at a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to ceasing any provision of the services agreed to within the SOA.

Should the Standing Offer Holder(s) default on any Call-Up issued, the Branch may, by notice to the Standing Offer Holders(s), terminate the whole or any part of the work. The Standing Offer Holder(s) shall be liable to His Majesty for any excess costs relating to the completion of the work.

#### 3.6 Allocation of Work:

It is the intent of Health Canada to award up to five (5) Standing Offers per stream to the five (5) highest scoring bidders who are compliant under each stream below with the requirements of this RFSO (4 streams for up to a maximum of 20 Standing Offers total).

Call-Ups against the Standing Offer will be issued on a **proportional basis** such that the highest-ranked SO Holder per Stream is allocated the largest predetermined portion of funds available for that Stream over the five (5) year period during which the Standing Offer is valid; the second highest-ranked SO Holder is allocated the second largest predetermined portion of funds available for that Stream, etc. as follows:

Highest Ranked SO Holder: up to 30% Second Highest Ranked SO Holder: up to 25% Third Highest Ranked SO Holder: up to 20% Fourth Highest Ranked SO Holder up to 15% Fifth Highest Ranked SO Holder up to 10%

If the number of responsive offers in either Stream is less than indicated above, the allocation percentages will be adjusted accordingly.

The SO Holder of best fit will be selected for any resultant Call-up. The Standing Offer Holder of best fit will be determined based upon factors such as, but not necessarily limited to:

- Operational requirements
- Availability of the Standing Offer Holder and its resources to conduct the work and meet any and all required timelines;
- Relevance of subject matter expertise of the SOA Holder and/or of its resources to the nature of the work to be done under the call-up;
- Any security requirements associated with the work;

The Standing Offer Authority will monitor Call-up activities to ensure work is allocated in accordance with the predetermined work distribution. Once a SO Holder has reached its limit as described above, it will not be permitted to receive an additional Call-up until the next year of the SOA.

The above allocation is on a per Stream basis. SO Holder may hold Standing Offers in one (1) or more Streams of Work, which shall not limit the SO Holder's proportional allocation indicated above.

A firm/fixed price for any request shall be established and agreed upon by the Project Authority and the selected Standing Offer Holder using the firm per diem rate and estimated level of effort (7.5 hours per day).

It is understood and agreed to that the Standing Offer Holder(s) shall not commence any work until authorized in writing by a Call-Up issued by the Contracting Authority.

### 3.7 Call-Up Procedures:

Health Canada's objective will be:

- To utilize the services of each SOA firm retained when and where possible according to the call-up methodology; and
- To distribute overall call-up value across the list of firms holding SOAs according to the proportions assigned at SOA award based on overall ranking.

Health Canada will enter into an individual Call-up against any of the Standing Offers up to a maximum not to exceed \$250,000.00 (including Goods and Services Tax, Harmonized Sales Tax and all amendments). Call-ups will be awarded in the following method:

Health Canada will select the SOA Holder of best fit for any resultant Call-up. The SOA Holder of best fit will be determined based upon the following factors:

- 1) Applicable Stream;
- 2) Relevance of subject matter expertise of the SOA Holder and/or of its resources to the nature of the work to be done under the call-up
- Availability of the SOA Holder and its resource(s) to conduct the work and meet any and all required timelines;
- 4) Operational requirements; and,
- 5) Security requirements.

The Project Authority for that specific work will provide the SOA Holder with a draft Statement of Work (SOW) and give the SOA Holder a minimum of five (5) business days or 48 hours for urgent requests to confirm their availability and confirm which authorized personnel will be assigned to the work. In some cases, the Project Authority will provide the SOA Holder with an estimated level of effort (in days), but where an estimated level of effort is not provided by the Project Authority, the SOA Holder must submit their estimated level of effort for the work.

In the event that the SOA Holder cannot meet the work requirements, the same process is repeated until an SOA Holder meets all the requirements.

A firm/fixed price for any request shall be established and agreed upon by the Project Authority and the selected Standing Offer Holder using the firm per diem rate(s), estimated level of effort (7.5 hours per day), and, for Stream 4 only, fair market value for travel and living expenses and miscellaneous expenses.

It is understood and agreed to that the Standing Offer Holder(s) shall not commence any work until authorized in writing by a Call-Up issued by the Contracting Authority.

It is understood and agreed that failure to provide written notification of availability within the time frame specified will be interpreted as being unable to perform the services and will result in the setting aside of the Call-up for the specific work request in question.

### 3.8 Language of Work:

The Standing Offer Holder shall be capable of correspondence with HC in relation to the SOA in either or both Official Languages (English/French) of Canada. However, all deliverables shall be produced and delivered in the target language of the particular project/task, as specified within the issued Call-Up.

## 3.9 Security Requirements:

Security requirements will be determined for each individual call-up.

### 4.0 Project Schedule:

## 4.1 Expected Start & Completion Dates:

The Standing Offer agreement shall be for a five (5) year period. The estimated start date is on or about April 1, 2024.

## 4.2 Schedule and Estimated Level of Effort (Work Breakdown Structure):

Upon receipt of a duly authorized Call-Up from Health Canada, the Standing Offer Holder(s) shall provide the services in accordance with this Request for Standing Offer and the specific delivery requirements as described within the Call-Up.

## 5.0 Required Resources or Types of Roles to be Performed:

Each Stream requires that throughout the lifespan of the Standing Offer that at least one (1) Project Manager and one (1) Technical Expert be authorized to work at all times.

### 6.0 Applicable Documents and Glossary:

#### 6.1 Applicable Documents:

As per the individual call-up.

### 6.2 Relevant Terms, Acronyms and Glossaries:

RFSO - Request for Standing Offer

HC - Health Canada

SOA - Standing Offer Agreement SED - Safe Environments Directorate

#### ANNEX "B"

#### **BASIS OF PAYMENT – FINANCIAL OFFER**

### A. Offeror (fill out)

#### **Financial Offer**

Offerors Must provide a firm per diem rate for each year of the standing offer period for each category for the Stream they have applied for as per Mandatory Criteria #1 (MT1). Offerors cannot submit for more than one stream in its offer, but can submit a separate offer if it wants to qualify for another stream.

The Offeror hereby offers to Health Canada, as requested by the Minister, to furnish all necessary expertise, supervision, materials, equipment and other things necessary to perform the work as described in the Statement of Requirements of the REQUEST FOR STANDING OFFER and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the REQUEST FOR STANDING OFFER, to the satisfaction of the Minister, or his authorized representative, for the following price(s):

Stream (please check)	□ 1	□ 2	□ 3	<b>4</b>
-----------------------	-----	-----	-----	----------

### 1. Firm Per Diem Rate for Project Manager

Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
F/Y 2024-2025	F/Y 2025-2026	F/Y 2026-2027	F/Y 2027-2028	F/Y 2028-2029
\$	\$	\$	\$	\$

## 2. Firm Per Diem Rate for Technical Expert(s)

Year 1         Year 2           F/Y 2024-2025         F/Y 2025-2026		Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
		F/Y 2026-2027	F/Y 2027-2028	F/Y 2028-2029
\$ \$		\$	\$	\$

Rates must be exclusive of applicable taxes.

Proposed Firm Per Diem Rates (for **EACH** labour category) shall be included in the resulting SOA and applicable for the duration of the SOA.

# ANNEX "C"

# SECURITY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST

				Co	ntract Number / Numéro du cont	rat			
*	Government of Canada	Gouvernement du Canada		1000251894					
	Oi Gariada	da Gariada		Security Classification / Classification de sécurité					
					Unclassified				
		SI	ECURITY REQUIREMEN	ITS CHECK LIST (SE	(CL)				
		JISTE DE VÉRIFIC	CATION DES EXIGENCE	S RELATIVES À LA					
1. Originating	ONTRACT INFORM Government Depa	ATION / PARTIE A - rtment or Organization	- INFORMATION CONTRA		h or Directorate / Direction génér	rale ou Direction			
		ernemental d'origine	Health Canada	HEC	•				
3. a) Subcont	tract Number / Num	éro du contrat de so	us-traitance 3. b) Na	me and Address of Sub	contractor / Nom et adresse du s	ous-traitant			
4. Brief Desc	ription of Work / Br	eve description du tra	avail						
					t activities to support its mandated rol				
purpose of	the standing offer is to	obtain a list of qualified	d companies that have a broad i	range of expertise in the are	and contaminated sites through risk a a of human health risk assessment ar	nd provide scientific			
	d manufalles entended	ering scientific information	a become a beautiful about a second and	in risk assessment, develop	nent of methodologies and tools for h	uman health risk 4			
		ès à des marchandis				Non Oui			
		cess to unclassified n	nilitary technical data subjec	t to the provisions of the	Technical Data Control	No Yes			
Regulat Le fourn		ès à des données tec	chniques militaires non class	sifiées qui sont assujettie	s aux dispositions du Règlement	Non Oui			
sur le co	ontrôle des données	s techniques?		4					
	2.	quired / Indiquer le ty							
6. a) Will the	supplier and its em	ployees require acce s employés auront-ils	ess to PROTECTED and/or accès à des renseignemen	CLASSIFIED information ts ou à des biens PROTI	or assets? GES et/ou CLASSIFIES?	No Yes Non Oui			
(Specify	the level of access	using the chart in Q	uestion 7. c)						
			u qui se trouve à la questior		ed access areas? No access to	No Yes			
PROTE	CTED and/or CLAS	SIFIED information of	or assets is permitted.	•		Non Oui			
			rs, personnel d'entretien) au ÉS et/ou CLASSIFIÉS n'est		es d'accès restreintes? L'accès				
			ent with <b>no</b> overnight storag			No Yes			
S'agit-il	d'un contrat de me	ssagerie ou de livrais	on commerciale sans entre	posage de nuit?		Non Oui			
7. a) Indicate	the type of informa	tion that the supplier	will be required to access /	Indiquer le type d'inform	ation auquel le fournisseur devra	avoir accès			
	Canada		NATO / OTAI	N	Foreign / Étranger				
7. b) Release No release		ictions relatives à la	diffusion All NATO countries		No release restrictions				
	triction relative		Tous les pays de l'OTAN		Aucune restriction relative				
à la diffusion	n '	_			à la diffusion				
Ņot releasa	ble								
À ne pas dif	ffuser								
Restricted to	o: / Limité à :		Restricted to: / Limité à :		Restricted to: / Limité à :				
Specify cou	ntry(ies): / Préciser	le(s) pays :	Specify country(ies): / Pré	ciser le(s) pays :	Specify country(ies): / Précis	er le(s) navs :			
						iei ie(s) pays .			
					, , , , ,	ser re(s) pays .			
						er re(s) pays .			
	information / Nivea	u d'information	NATO LINCI ASSISIED			er re(s) pays .			
PROTECTE	DA [	u d'information	NATO UNCLASSIFIED NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ		PROTECTED A	er re(s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE	A DB	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTECTED B	let let s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ	A L	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST	REINTE	PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTECTED B PROTÉGÉ B	let let s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE	A A B B C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED	REINTE	PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTECTED B	El let s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN	ED A A ED B B ED C C ITIAL	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIEL NATO SECRET	REINTE	PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTECTED B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL	El let s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN CONFIDEN	ED A A ED B B ED C C ITIAL	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIEL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET	REINTE	PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTECTED B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIEL	El let s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN	ED A A ED B B ED C C ITIAL	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIEL NATO SECRET		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTECTED B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL	Let let (s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN CONFIDEN SECRET TOP SECRET	ED A A A ED B B ED C C C ITIAL ITIEL ET	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIEL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET COSMIC TOP SECRET		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTÉGÉ B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET	Let let (s) pays .			
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN CONFIDEN SECRET TOP SECRET TRÈS SECIE	ED A A A ED B B ED C C C ITIAL ITIEL ET RET	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIEL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET COSMIC TOP SECRET		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTÉGÉ B PROTÉGÉ B PROTÉGÉ C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET TRÈS SECRET				
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN SECRET SECRET TOP SECRE TRÉS SECI	ED A A A ED B B ED C C C ITIAL ITIEL ET	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIEL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET COSMIC TOP SECRET		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTÉGÉ B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET				
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN SECRET SECRET TOP SECRE TRÉS SECI	ED A A A B B B B C C C C TITIAL TITIEL  ET RET ET (SIGINT)	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIEL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET COSMIC TOP SECRET		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTÉGÉ B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET (SIGINT)				
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN CONFIDEN SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET TRÈS SECI	ED A A A ED B B ED C C C ITIAL ITIEL ET RET ET (SIGINT) RET (SIGINT)	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET COSMIC TOP SECRET COSMIC TRÈS SECRET		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTÉGÉ B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET (SIGINT)				
PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ PROTECTE PROTÉGÉ CONFIDEN CONFIDEN SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET TRÈS SECI	ED A A A B B B B C C C C TITIAL TITIEL  ET RET ET (SIGINT)	u d'information	NATO NON CLASSIFIÉ NATO RESTRICTED NATO DIFFUSION REST NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET COSMIC TOP SECRET COSMIC TRÈS SECRET		PROTECTED A PROTÉGÉ A PROTÉGÉ B PROTÉGÉ B PROTECTED C PROTÉGÉ C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL SECRET SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET TOP SECRET (SIGINT)	Canadä			



Contract Number / Numéro du contrat	
1000251894	
Security Classification / Classification de sécurité Unclassified	

		Unclas	sified
PART A (continued) / PARTIE A (suite) 8. Will the supplier require access to PROTECTED and/or CLASSIF	IED COMSEC information or	accete?	No Yes
Le fournisseur aura-t-il accès à des renseignements ou à des bie			
If Yes, indicate the level of sensitivity:			
Dans l'affirmative, indiquer le niveau de sensibilité :  9. Will the supplier require access to extremely sensitive INFOSEC	nformation or assets?		No Yes
Le fournisseur aura-t-il accès à des renseignements ou à des bie		mement délicate?	Non Oui
Short Title(s) of material / Titre(s) abrégé(s) du matériel :			
Document Number / Numéro du document : PART B - PERSONNEL (SUPPLIER) / PARTIE B - PERSONNEL (	FOURNISSEUR)		
10. a) Personnel security screening level required / Niveau de contro		l requis	
RELIABILITY STATUS CONFIDE			TOP SECRET
COTE DE FIABILITÉ CONFIDE	_	_	TRÉS SECRET
		D SECRET D SECRET	COSMIC TOP SECRET COSMIC TRÈS SECRET
SITE ACCESS ACCÈS AUX EMPLACEMENTS			
Special comments:			
Commentaires spéciaux :			
NOTE: If multiple levels of screening are identified, a			
REMARQUE: Si plusieurs niveaux de contrôle de s 10. b) May unscreened personnel be used for portions of the work?	ecunte sont requis, un guide	de classification de la se	cunte doit etre fourni.
Du personnel sans autorisation sécuritaire peut-il se voir conf	er des parties du travail?		Non Oui
If Yes, will unscreened personnel be escorted?			No Ves
Dans l'affirmative, le personnel en question sera-t-il escorté?			Non Oui
PART C - SAFEGUARDS (SUPPLIER) / PARTIE C - MESURES D	PROTECTION (FOURNISS	EUR)	
INFORMATION / ASSETS / RENSEIGNEMENTS / BIENS			
11. a) Will the supplier be required to receive and store PROTECTE	D and/or CLASSIFIED inform	ation or assets on its sit	e or No Yes
premises?			Non Oui
Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de recevoir et d'entreposer sur pl CLASSIFIÉS?	ace des renseignements ou d	es biens PROTÉGÉS et	/ou
<ol> <li>b) Will the supplier be required to safeguard COMSEC informati</li> <li>Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu de protéger des renseignements</li> </ol>			No Yes Non Oui
	ou des biens combec :		Nonou
PRODUCTION			
11. c) Will the production (manufacture, and/or repair and/or modification	n) of PROTECTED and/or CL/	ASSIFIED material or equ	
occur at the supplier's site or premises?  Les installations du fournisseur serviront-elles à la production (fa	brication et/ou réparation et/ou	modification) de matériel	PROTÉGÉ Non Oui
et/ou CLASSIFIÉ?		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) MEDIA / SUPPORT RELAT	IF A LA TECHNOLOGIE DE L	'INFORMATION (TI)	
			D No ENG
11. d) Will the supplier be required to use its IT systems to electronically information or data?	process, produce or store PR	OTECTED and/or CLASS	SIFIED No Non Non Oui
Le fournisseur sera-t-il tenu d'utiliser ses propres systèmes infor	matiques pour traiter, produire	ou stocker électroniquem	
renseignements ou des données PROTÉGÉS et/ou CLASSIFIÉ	S?		
			No
<ol> <li>e) Will there be an electronic link between the supplier's IT systems</li> <li>Disposera-t-on d'un lien électronique entre le système information</li> </ol>			No Yes
gouvernementale?	pac da rournisseur et celul du li	missele ou de l'agende	
TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12) Security Cla	ssification / Classification de s	sécurité	
	Unclassified		Canadä



Contract Number / Numéro du contrat

1000251894

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité Unclassified

PART C -	(continued	) / PARTIE C	- (suite)

For users completing the form manually use the summary chart below to indicate the category(ies) and level(s) of safeguarding required at the supplier's site(s) or premises.

Les utilisateurs qui remplissent le formulaire manuellement doivent utiliser le tableau récapitulatif ci-dessous pour indiquer, pour chaque catégorie, les niveaux de sauvegarde requis aux installations du fournisseur.

For users completing the form online (via the Internet), the summary chart is automatically populated by your responses to previous questions. Dans le cas des utilisateurs qui remplissent le formulaire en ligne (par Internet), les réponses aux questions précédentes sont automatiquement saisies dans le tableau récapitulatif.

#### SUMMARY CHART / TABLEAU RÉCAPITULATIF

Category Catégorie		ROTECTED CLASSIFIED ROTEGÉ CLASSIFIÉ		NATO			COMBEC									
	A B C		С	CONFIDENTIAL	SECRET	TOP SECRET	NATO RESTRICTED	NATO CONFIDENTIAL	NATO SECRET	TOP SECRET		ROTÉG		CONFIDENTIAL	SECRET	TOP SECRET
				CONFIDENTIEL		TRÉS SECRET	NATO DIFFUSION RESTREINTE	NATO CONFIDENTIEL		COSMIC TRÉS SECRET	A	В	С	CONFIDENTIEL		TRES SECRET
Information / Assets Renseignements / Biens																
Production																
IT Media / Support TI																
IT Link / Lien électronique																

12. a) Is the description of the work contained within this SRCL PROTECTED and/or CLASSIFIED?	
La description du travail visé par la présente LVERS est-elle de nature PROTÉGÉE et/ou CLASSIFIÉE	Ε?

If Yes, classify this form by annotating the top and bottom in the area entitled "Security Classification".

Dans l'affirmative, classifier le présent formulaire en indiquant le niveau de sécurité dans la case intitulée « Classification de sécurité » au haut et au bas du formulaire.

12	. b) Will the	documer	ntation atta	ached to t	his SRCL	be PROTEC	TED and/o	or CLASS	SIFIED?	
	La docu	mentation	associée	à la prése	ente LVER	S sera-t-elle	PROTÉG	ÉE et/ou	CLASSIFI	ÉE?

Yes

If Yes, classify this form by annotating the top and bottom in the area entitled "Security Classification" and indicate with Dans l'affirmative, classifier le présent formulaire en indiquant le niveau de sécurité dans la case intitulée
« Classification de sécurité » au haut et au bas du formulaire et indiquer qu'il y a des pièces jointes (p. ex. SECRET avec

des pièces jointes).

TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12)

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité Unclassified

Canadä



Government of Canada Gouvernement du Canada

Contract Number / Numéro du contrat Security Classification / Classification de sécurité Unclassified

PART D - AUTHORIZATION / PARTIE D						
<ol> <li>Organization Project Authority / Charge</li> </ol>	de projet de l'orga		Char	nhorlo	gitally signed by Chamberlain, Shawn I: C=CA, O=GC, OU=HC-SC, CN=*	
Name (print) - Nom (en lettres moulées)		Title - Titre		_	POR	i: C=CA, O=GC, OU=HC-SC, CN=" simberlain, Shawn" secon: I am the author of this
Shawn Chamberlain		A/Manager		in, S	hawn 🖁	current cation: your signing location here the: 2022.10.18 10:13:13-04'00' out PDF Editor Version: 11.2.1
Telephone No N° de téléphone Fac 343-540-7571	simile No Nº de t	élécopieur	E-mail address - Adresse cour shawn.chamberlain@hc-sc.gc		Date 2023-11-15	
14. Organization Security Authority / Response	onsable de la sécu	rité de l'organ	isme		T	Digitally signed by Turner, Connor DN: C=CA, O=GC, OU=HC-SC.
Name (print) - Nom (en lettres moulées)		Title - Titre		_	Turner	PRESENCE: I am the author of this
Connor Turner		SC			Conno	Location: Date: 2023.11.17 13:33:16-05'00' Foxit PDF Editor Version: 12.1.2
	simile No N° de t	élécopieur	E-mail address - Adresse cour	riel	Date	
3435725984			connor.turner@hc-sc.gc.ca		2023-11-17	
<ol> <li>Are there additional instructions (e.g. S Des instructions supplémentaires (p. e</li> </ol>	x. Guide de sécurit			t-elles jointes	s?	No Yes Non Oui
<ol><li>Procurement Officer / Agent d'approvis</li></ol>	ionnement					
Name (print) - Nom (en lettres moulées)		Title - Titre		Signature	Dig	Bally signed by Phillips, Wesley : CPCA, OPGC, OUNIC-SC, CNPPhillips, Wesley*
Wesley Phillips		A/Team Lead, PMAMD		Phillips	i, Wesley‱	CO-CA, CHICAC, CHIVAIC-SC, CAN*SHAIDA, WARRAY* sacre I am the author of this document salan: sc 2020,12.05 12:16:40-0800* it POF Editor Venion: 12.1.2
	simile No N° de t	élécopieur	E-mail address - Adresse cou	urriel	Date	
613-941-2067			wesley.phillips@hc-sc.gc.ca			
17. Contracting Security Authority / Autorit	é contractante en n	natière de séc	curité	т		oltally signed by Turner, Connor N: C=CA, O=GC, OU=HC-BC, CN="
Name (print) - Nom (en lettres moulées)		Title - Titre		_	ner,	mer, Connor"
				Co		cation: ste: 2023.11.17 13:33:57-05'00' ixtt PDF Editor Version: 12.1.2
Telephone No N° de téléphone Fac	simile No Nº de t	élécopieur	E-mail address - Adresse cou	urriel	Date	

TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12)

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité Unclassified

Canadä